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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-21121
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Technologies Incorporated

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 06-145668C
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No
One Hamden Center, 2319 Whitney Avenue, Suite 3B,dmden, CT 06518
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area cod203-859-6800

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of Each Class- Common Stock, par value $.01 per shar  Name of Exchange on which Registere- NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a kelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortidacl5(d) of the Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by SeeticB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sudrtteh period that the registrant was requiredl®duch reports), and (2) has been subject to sucl
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yéds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant idsnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&lb site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Rb of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this chapdeirjng the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requiresbtamit and post such files). YesX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéilers pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorKS:8229.405 of this chapter) is not contained he
and will not be contained, to the best of regidtsaknowledge, in definitive proxy or informatiotatements incorporated by reference in Part
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10zK.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant igrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer, or a smaller repor
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportir@pmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileild Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filerd (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting companyd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgie Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndaimgocommon equity stock held by neffiliates of the Registrant was approxima
$82,400,000 based on the last sale price on Juriz03@.
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PART |
Iltem 1. Business.

The Company

TransAct Technologies Incorporated (“TransAct” loe t Company”) was incorporated in June 1996 andbeaperating as a staatbne business
August 1996 as a spioff of the printer business that was formerly cortdd by certain subsidiaries of Tridex Corporatidde completed an initi
public offering on August 22, 1996.

TransAct designs, develops and sells market-spesifiutions, including printers, terminals, softevand other products for transactioaised an
other industries. These world-class products dkwwader the Epic, EPICENTRAL®, Ithaca®, RESPONDER®I Printrex@rand names. Knov
and respected worldwide for innovative designs readtworld service reliability, our thermal, inkjahd impact printers and terminals generate top
quality labels and transaction records such asp&cdickets, coupons, register journals and ottemuments as well as printed logging and plo

of data. We focus on the following core marketaidisafety, banking and point-of-sale (“PO%3sino and gaming, lottery, and Printrex (w!
serves the oil and gas, medical and mobile printhmegkets). We sell our products to original equiptn@anufacturers (“OEMs”), valuadde«
resellers ("VARs"), selected distributors, as vaaldirectly to endisers. Our product distribution spans across therfas, Europe, the Midc
East, Africa, Asia, Australia, the Caribbean Iskiathd the South Pacific. TransAct also provideddwvdiass printer service, spare parts, acces:
and printing supplies to its growing worldwide iltd base of printers. Through our TransAct SewiGroup (“TSG")we provide a comple
range of supplies and consumables used in thenmgiand scanning activities of customers in thepltabty, banking, retail, casino and gami
government and oil and gas exploration marketsodgh our webstore, www.transactsupplies.cand our direct selling team, we address the on
line demand for these product&Ve have one primary operating,global research awdldpment and eastern region service center lddatithaca
NY. In addition, we have a casino and gaming shaéeglquarters and western region service centeasn/egas, NV, a sales and service cente

the oil and gas industry in Houston, TX, a Europsales and service center in the United Kingdosalas office located in Macau and two o
sales offices located in the United States. Oecetive offices are located at One Hamden Cen849 2Vhitney Avenue, Suite 3B, Hamden, CT
06518, with a telephone number of (203) 859-6800.

On August 19, 2011, we completed the acquisitionPoihtrex, Inc. (“Printrex”)for $4,000,000 in cash and potential future cordir
consideration. Printrex is a leading manufactofespecialty printers primarily sold into the oilcagas exploration and medical and mobile prir
markets. Printrex serves commercial and industrisdtomers primarily in the United States, Candfl&ope and Asia. This acquisition v
completed to complement our existing product oifigsi

Financial Information about Segments

We operate in one reportable segment, the deseyelapment, assembly and marketing of transactiorigrs and terminals and providing rele
software, services, supplies and spare partsrnvEon about our net sales, gross profit and assmt be found in our Consolidated Finar
Statements on pages F-3 and F-4 hereof.

Products, Services and Distribution Methods

Printers and terminals

TransAct designs, develops, assembles and marketsad array of transactidmesed and specialty printers and terminals utgizirkjet, therme
and impact printing technology for applicationspparily in the food safety, banking and POS, casind gaming, lottery, oil and gas, medical
mobile printing markets. Our printers and termsnate configurable and offer customers the abititichoose from a variety of features
functions. Options typically include interface figaration, mounting configuration, paper cuttingvites, paper handling capacities and cabi
color. In addition to our configurable printersdaterminals, we design and assemble custom prifaersertain OEM customers. In collabora
with these customers, we provide engineering ambifaaturing expertise for the design and develofroéspecialized printers.

Food safety, banking and POS:  During 2012 in an effort to address the Food Safétyglernization Act, we developed a food safety taath ¢
hardware device that consists of a touchscreenoaedor two thermal print mechanisms, that printsyda+ead expiration and "enjoy by" d
labels to help restaurants effectively manage famdtion and spoilage. In the food safety market, we use an internal sedpsesentative
manage sales of our terminals through distributianywell as a dedicated internal sales force foisebles directly from end-users.

Our banking and POS printers include hundreds tiboal configurations that can be selected to rpeeticular customer needs. We believe
this is a significant competitive strength, asllibws us to satisfy a wide variety of printing ajgpkions that our customers request. In the bay
market, we sell printers that are used by banlegicunions and other financial institutions tonpnieceipts and/ or validate checks at bank 1
stations. In the POS market, we sell several nsodélprinters utilizing inkjet, thermal and impamtinting technology. Our printers are u
primarily by retailers in the restaurant (includifige dining, casual dining, and fast food), hoaly, and specialty retail industries to print egats
for consumers, validate checks, or print on liresléabels or other inserted media. In the POS ebavke primarily sell our products throug
network of domestic and international distributansl resellers. We use an internal sales forceatmage sales through our distributors and rese
as well as to solicit sales directly from end-usdrsthe banking market, we primarily sell our guets directly to endiser banks and financ
institutions through the use of our internal sétese.

Lottery: We supply lottery printers to Lottomattica’'s GTEGEbrporation (“GTECH”"), our largest customer and thorld’'s largest provider
lottery terminals. These printers are designedhfgh-volume, higlspeed printing of lottery tickets for various lotteapplications. Sales of ¢
lottery products are made directly to GTECH and agga by an internal sales representative.

Casino and gaming: We sell several models of printers used in slatiines and video lottery terminals (“VLT’'s&nd other gaming machir
that print tickets or receipts instead of issuinins (“ticket-in, ticket-out” or “TITO”) at casips, racetracks (“racinos”)and other gaming vent
worldwide. These printers utilize thermal printitechnology and can print tickets or receipts imoahrome or tw-color (depending upon t



model), and offer various other features such as fjasistant bezels and a dual port interface thatles casinos to print coupons
promotions. In addition, we sell printers usingrthal printing technology for use in noasino establishments, including game types su
Amusements with Prizes (“AWP”), Skills with Priz¢$SSWP"), Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (“FOBT”) armther offpremise gaming ty|
machines around the world. We sell our produdisamily to (1) slot machine manufacturers, who im@rate our printers into slot machines i
in turn, sell completed slot machines directly &sinos and other gaming establishments and (2ughrour primary worldwide distributor, Suzo-
Happ Group. We also maintain a dedicated intesaéds force to solicit sales from slot manufactumd casinos, as well as to manage

through our distributor.




We also offer a software solution, the EPICENTRRLPrint System (“EPICENTRALM "), that enables casino operators to create promo
coupons and marketing messages and print thenaistinge at the slot machine. With EPICENTRAWM , casinos can utilize the system to cr
multiple promotions and incentives to either insgaustomer time spent on the casino floor or elagmuadditional visits to generate more rewv
to the casinos.

Printrex: Printrex printers include wide format, rack mathaind vehicle mounted thermal printers used biomers to log and plot oil field a
down hole well drilling data in the oil and gas xption industry. During 2012, we launched twavneplor printers for this market, the Print
920 and Printrex 980. The Printrex 920 is thet fnfl-color printer designed from the ground up to perfan the adverse environment of a \
logging truck or offshore platform. Using thermal printer technoloiggan print in black and white, or in full colosimg proprietary color pap:
without the need for inkjet cartridges or ribborihe Printrex 980 is the fastest full color pringsmilable for plotting continuous logs in the «
centers of the large oil field service compani€his printer uses proprietary inkjet cartridges.2015, we expect to launch the Responder MF
our first printer for the large machine-to-machiidd2M) vertical market. The Responder MP2™ is arirelone mobile printing solution for
number of vehicles, including fire, police, EMSsimance, public utilities and deliveryn addition, we sell wide format thermal printersed tc
print test results in ophthalmology devices in thedical industry, as well as vehicle mounted printgsed to print schematics and certain «
critical information in emergency services vehicdes other mobile printing applications. We prirhasell our Printrex products directly to oil fie
service and drilling companies and OEMas well as through regional distributors inthted States, Europe, Canada and Asia. We alsotair
a dedicated internal sales force with a salesefficated in Houston, Texas.

TSG: Through TSG, we proactively market the sale of aamable products (including inkjet cartridges, ribbpreceipt paper, color thermal pe
and other printing supplies), replacement partsnteaance and repair services and testing serficedl of our products and certain competisor’
products. Our maintenance services include the shlextended warranties, multi-year maintenanagraots, 24hour guaranteed replacem
product service called TransAct Xpreds, and other repair services for our printers. VMitihe United States, we provide repair servicesuft
our eastern region service center in Ithaca, NY,veestern region service center in Las Vegas, N¥ a@ur oil and gas industry service cente
Houston, TX. Internationally, we provide repaingees through our European service center locatddloncaster, United Kingdom, and throi
partners strategically located around the world.

We also provide customers with telephone salesteatthical support, and a personal account reprabento handle orders, shipping and ger
information. Technical and sales support persorgwive training on all of our manufactured prdadwmnd our services.

In addition to personalized telephone and techrdapport, we also market and sell consumable ptsdifchours a day, seven days a week, vi
online webstore www.transactsupplies.com

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We design our products to optimize product perfaroea quality, reliability and durability. Thesestins combine cost efficient materials, sour
and assembly methods with high standards of worktripn Approximately 95% of our printer productien primarily through one thirgarty
contract manufacturer in Asia and to a lesser ¢xdea other in Asia and one in Mexico. The renmain% of our products are assembled ir
Ithaca, NY facility largely on a configure-tarder basis using components and subassembliefidkatbeen sourced from vendors and cor
manufacturers around the world.

We procure component parts and subassemblies éoinute assembly of our products in Ithaca, NYiti€al component parts and subassem
include inkjet, thermal and impact print headsnptimg/cutting mechanisms, power supplies, motargction molded plastic parts, LCD scret
circuit boards and electronic components, whichadotained from domestic and foreign suppliers anpetitive prices. As a result of the majo
of our production being performed by our contraetnufacturers, purchases of component parts havmel@avhile purchases of fullgssemble
printers produced by our contract manufacturersehaereased. We typically strive to maintain mtran one source for our component p
subassemblies and fully assembled printers to eedhe risk of parts shortages or unavailabilityowdver, we could experience tempo
disruption if certain suppliers ceased doing bussngith us, as described below.

We currently buy substantially all of our thermaihp mechanisms, an important component of oumtiaéiprinters, and fully assembled printers
several of our printer models, from one foreign tcact manufacturer, and to a much lesser extenty tther foreign contra
manufacturers. Although we believe that other @mttmanufacturers could provide similar thermahtpmechanisms or fully assembled print
on comparable terms, a change in contract manuéastaould cause a delay in manufacturing and pleskiss of sales, which may have a mat
adverse effect on our operating results. Althowghdo not have a supply agreement with our foremmutract manufacturers, our relationship
them remains strong and we have no reason to befiet they will discontinue their supply of thefrpant mechanisms to us during 2015 or
their terms to us will be any less favorable tHaythave been historically.

Hewlett-Packard Company (“HPi3 the sole supplier of inkjet cartridges thatased in all of our banking inkjet printers. In &otch, we also sell
substantial number of HP inkjet cartridges as asuorable product through TSG. Although other inkjettridges that are compatible with
banking inkjet printers are available, the losshef supply of HP inkjet cartridges could have aemat adverse effect on both the sale of our it
printers and TSG consumable products. Our relshipnwith HP remains stable and we have no reasdrelieve that HP will discontinue
supply of inkjet cartridges to us or that theimterto us will be materially different than they kabeen historically. The inkjet cartridges
purchase from HP are used not only in our inkjattprs for the banking and POS market, but alsetler manufactures’ printing devices acrc
several other markets.

ZINK Imaging Inc. (“ZINK”) is the sole supplier of proprietary color thermaper used in our Printrex 920 oil and gas prin®e had a supp
agreement with ZINK to exclusively supply us withNK color thermal paper for the oil and gas indysit fixed prices through December
2014. We plan to renew this agreement during 20t loss of the supply of ZINK color thermal papsuld have a material adverse effec
the sale of Printrex 920 printers and ZINK colagrtihal paper.






Canon, Inc. (“Canon”) is the sole supplier of inlgartridges and other consumable items (“Canors@mables”that are used in our Printrex ¢
oil and gas printer. The loss of supply of Canam$limables would have a material adverse effe¢h@rsale of Printrex 980 printers and
Canon Consumables. We have a supply agreementaitbn to supply us with Canon Consumables untif R2l7. Prices under this agreen
were fixed through May 2013, but may be changeéhduhe remainder of the agreement if the exchaatgefluctuates significantly between
Japanese yen and the U.S. dollar.

Patents and Proprietary Information

TransAct relies on a combination of trade secrgsents, employee and third party nondisclosureeagents, copyright laws and contractual ri
to establish and protect its proprietary rightstinproducts. We hold 29 United States and 30Oidar@atents and have 8 United States ar
foreign patent applications pending pertaining to products. The duration of these patents range f3 to 17 years. The expiration of

individual patent would not have a significant rigaimpact on our business. We regard certain ufeturing processes and designs t
proprietary and attempt to protect them through leyge and thirdparty nondisclosure agreements and similar mednsay be possible fi
unauthorized third parties to copy certain portioh®ur products or to reverse engineer or othenwistain and use, to our detriment, informe
that we regard as proprietary. Moreover, the laf\some foreign countries do not afford the sanwégation to our proprietary rights as do the |
of the United States. There can be no assurantéetie protections we rely upon to protect ourppietary position will be adequate or that
competitors will not independently develop techigods that are substantially equivalent or supdédaur technologies.

Seasonality
Restaurants typically reduce purchases of new $abety equipment in the fourth quarter due to tlmedased volume of transactions in that hol
period.

Working Capital

Inventory, accounts receivable, and accounts payabkls, payment terms, and where applicablerirgtalicies are in accordance with the ger
practices of the industry and standard businessegioes. See also Iltem 7. Managensebiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditior
Results of Operations.

Certain Customers

GTECH has been our most significant customer. &eedbnber 2009, we signed a new fixgar agreement effective November 20, 2009,
GTECH (the “GTECH Thermal Printer AgreementQnder the terms of the agreement, we provide GTE@H their latest generation therr
lottery printers for various lottery applicationshe terms of the agreement require that GTECHusketly purchase all of its requirements
thermal online lottery printers from us and that we excluivgell such printers to GTECH through May 8, 2018e are currently in negotiatic
with GTECH to extend the agreement.

Sales to GTECH and other customers representingdtQ%eore of our total net sales were as follows:

Year ended December &
2014 2013 2012

GTECH 16% 12% 18%
Eurocoin Ltd. 11% 12% 15%

Backlog
Our backlog of firm orders was approximately $18,880 as of February 27, 2015, compared to $4,008:3 of February 28, 2014. Base
customers’ current delivery requirements, we expeship our entire current backlog during 2015.

Competition

The market for transactidmased and specialty printing solutions is extrenmynpetitive, and we expect such competition totioae in the
future. We compete with a number of companies,yntdrwhich have greater financial, technical andkating resources than us. We believe
ability to compete successfully depends on a nurobéactors both within and outside our controkliding durability, reliability, quality, desi
capability, product customization, price, custoraepport, success in developing new products, maturfag expertise and capacity, suppl
component parts and materials, strategic relatipashith suppliers, the timing of new product iduztions by us and our competitors, ger
market, economic and political conditions and,dms cases, the uniqueness of our products.

In the food safety market, we compete with AverynBison Corporation, Ecolab Inc. and Integrated @bi@orp. We compete in this market be
largely on our ability to provide highly specializproducts, custom engineering and ongoing techsigaport.

In the banking and POS market, our major compet#dEpson America, Inc., which holds a dominant ketiposition of the POS markets i
which we sell. We also compete, to a much lesseng with CognitiveTPG, Star Micronics Americagl, Citizen --CBM America Corporatiol
Pertech Industries, Inc., Addmaster, and Samsurgli. Certain competitors of ours have greatearicial resources, lower costs attributab
higher volume production and sometimes offer loprgges than us.

In the casino and gaming market (consisting prgypof slot machine and video lottery terminalnsaction printing and promotional cou
printing), we compete with several companies iniclgd-utureLogic, Inc., Nanoptix, Inc., Custom Erggning SPA and others. Certain of
products sold for casino and gaming applicationsmete based upon our ability to provide highly semed products, custom engineering
ongoing technical support.

In the lottery market (consisting principally of -tine lottery transaction printing), we hold a l&@agl position, based largely on our loteg#r
purchase agreement with GTECH. We compete inrtagket based solely on our ability to provide spied, custormengineered products
GTECH.

In the Printrex market, we compete with the Imadgiygtems Group, Inc*iSys”), Neuralog Inc., GSI Group and others. We compethigymarke



based largely on our ability to provide specializagstom-engineered products.




The TSG business is highly fragmented, and we ctenpéth numerous competitors of various sizes,uditlg POS and internet resells
depending on the geographic area.

Our strategy for competing in our markets is totcare to develop new products (hardware and soéfjvand product line extensions, to incre
our geographic market penetration, to take advantafy strategic relationships, and to lower prodoosts by sourcing certain prodt
overseas. Although we believe that our produgterations and relationships provide a competitounéiation, there can be no assurance th
will compete successfully in the future. In adafitj our products utilize certain inkjet, thermatlampact printing technology. If other technolag
or variations to existing technologies, were tolegmr become available to us, it is possible thatwould incorporate these technologies intc
products. Alternatively, if such technologies wéweevolve or become available to our competitors, products could become obsolete, w
would have a significant negative impact on ourifess.

Research and Development Activities

Research, development, and engineering expenditapgesent costs incurred in the experimental borkory sense aimed at discovery ar
application of new knowledge in developing a newduoict or process, or in bringing about significanprovement in an existing product
process. We spent approximately $4,302,000, $40065and $4,239,000 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, résplc on engineering, design and proc
development efforts in connection with specializegjineering and design to introduce new hardwadesaftware products and to customiz
improve existing products.

Costs incurred in researching and developing a atengoftware product are charged to expense teatiinological feasibility has been establis
at which point all material software costs are taijzied within Intangible assets in our ConsolidaBalance Sheets until the product is availabl
sale to customers. While judgment is requiredetermining when technological feasibility of a puctlis established, we have determined tha
reached after all highisk development issues have been documented arnaaf detailed plan design. The amortization afsth costs will k
included in cost of sales over the estimated Iffthe product. During 2010 we began the developgroEEPICENTRAL™. | which enables casi
customers to print coupons and promotions at thtenshchine. Unamortized development costs for soffware were approximately $169,000
$370,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respBctiThe total amount charged to cost of salescépitalized software development c
were approximately $201,000, $199,000, and $189%0Q014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Environment
We are not aware of any material noncompliance feitteral, state and local provisions that have leercted or adopted regulating the disck
of materials into the environment, or otherwisatial to the protection of the environment.

Employees
As of December 31, 2014, TransAct and our subsetiagmployed 129 persons, all of whom were tiolle employees. None of our employees
unionized, and we consider our relationships withemployees to be good.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas
For financial information regarding our geograpareas see Note 16 Geographic Area Information in the Notes to the €idated Financi
Statements. Risks related to our foreign operataye described in Item 1A below.

Trademarks, Service Marks and Copyrights

We own or have rights to trademarks, service marksle names and copyrights that we use in corregtith the operation of our busine
including our corporate names, logos and websiteasa Other trademarks, service marks and tradesappearing in this annual report on F
10-K are the property of their respective ownerse Trademarks we own include TransAct®, EPICENTRAL®aca®, RESPONDER@&nNCc
Printrex®. Solely for convenience, some of the ¢éradrks, service marks, trade names and copyrigfgsed to in this annual report on FormK.0-
are listed without the ©, @&nd ™ symbols, but we will assert, to the fullegeat under applicable law, our rights to our tradeks, service marlk
trade names and copyrights.

Available Information

We make available free of charge through our irtewebsitewww.transacttech.com, our annual report on Form X3-quarterly reports on Foi
10-Q, current reports on Formikg-and all amendments to those reports as sooaaa®mably practicable after such material is eeatally filed
with or furnished to the Securities and Exchangen@ission (“SEC”). You may read and copy any materfiled with the SEC at the SEC’
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wastimd2?C 20549. You may obtain information on themion of the Public Reference Roon
calling the SEC at 1-800-SE@330. This information is also available at wwe.gev. The reference to these website addresssssrad constitu
incorporation by reference of the information camta on the websites and should not be consideagdpthis document.

We maintain a Code of Business Conduct that induide code of ethics that is applicable to all emeés, including our Chief Executive Offic
Chief Financial Officer and Controller. This Codehich requires continued observance of high ettstandards such as honesty, integrity
compliance with the law in the conduct of our bes is available for public access on our intewedisite. Any person may request a copy 0
Code of Business Conduct free of charge by ca(2@g) 859-6800.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks, wraisties and other factors described below, ad aelother disclosures in Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition dResults of Operations, because they could have tarisaadverse effect on our busin
financial condition, operating results, and gropwtbspects. The risks described below are not tihe anes facing our Company. Additional ri
not known to us now or that we currently deem ineriat may also impair our business operations.

We assume no obligation (and specifically discl@ny such obligation) to update these Risk Factorany other forwardeoking statemen
contained in this Annual Report to reflect actuults, changes in assumptions or other factoestaify such forwardboking statements, except
required by law.






Our operating results and financial condition may fluctuate.

Our operating results and financial condition magtiiate from quarter to quarter and year to yedrare likely to continue to vary due to a nun
of factors, many of which are not within our cohtrtf our operating results do not meet the exgiahs of securities analysts or investors,
may derive their expectations by extrapolating dadan recent historical operating results, the rearkrice of our common stock will like
decline. Fluctuations in our operating results fina@ncial condition may be due to a number ofdestincluding, but not limited to, those identi
throughout this “Risk Factors” section:

« market acceptance of our products, both domestiealll internationally;

« development of new competitive products by others;

e Ourresponses to price competition;

« our level of research and development activities;

« changes in the amount that we spend to developjracor license new products, consumables, teclgiedar businesses;

« changes in the amount we spend to promote our ptedind services;

« changes in the cost of satisfying our warrantygailons and servicing our installed base of priter

« delays between our expenditures to develop andehadw or enhanced products and consumables amggtieeation of sales from the
products;

« the geographic distribution of our sales;

« availability of third-party components at reasomrgtlices;

« general economic and industry conditions, includthgnges in interest rates affecting returns oh batances and investments, that a
customer deman

« severe weather events (such as hurricanes) thatisrapt or interrupt the operation of our custosnar suppliers facilities; and

« changes in accounting rules.

Due to all of the foregoing factors, and the oftigks discussed in this report, quartegtmarter comparisons of our operating results maybaal
indicator of future performance.

Our revenue and profitability depend on our ability to continue to develop, on a timely basis, new products and technologies which are free from
hardware or software anomalies and cannot be fraudulently manipulated.

The success of newer products such as the Ithaza® fod safety terminal and the Printrex® 920 Bridtrex®980 oil and gas color printers
dependent on how quickly customers in the relatedkets accept them given the very little marketepetion these products have experiel
since they are new and innovative and have limiteapetition. Additionally, the success of innovatiechnology, such as printing coupons
promotions at the slot machine using EPICENTRAL® dependent on our casino customers' acceptansecbftechnology. While we he
designed EPICENTRAL™ to support our customers'texgjsinvestment in our Epic 950@hermal casino printers, such acceptance
nevertheless only build gradually over time or mbtall. Delays in acceptance by our customersesi technologies may adversely affect
operations.

Our success depends upon our ability to adapt eypahilities and processes to meet the demands afuping new and innovati
products. Because our newer products are genenaltg technologically sophisticated than those axetproduced in the past, we must contini
refine our capabilities to meet the needs of oodpct innovation. If we cannot efficiently adaptr anfrastructure to meet the needs of our prc
innovations in a timely manner, our business ctlahegatively impacted.

Infringement on the proprietary rights of others could put us at a competitive disadvantage, and any related litigation could be time consuming
and costly.

Third parties may claim that we violated their llggetual property rights. To the extent of a vi@atof a third party’s patent or other intellectual
property right, we may be prevented from operatingbusiness as planned and may be required tdgragges, to obtain a license, if available, or
to use a non-infringing method, if possible, toauogplish our objectives. Any of these claims, withagthout merit, could result in costly litigation
and divert the attention of key personnel. If saleims are successful, they could result in cgstlgments or settlements. Refer to Item 3. “Legal
Proceedings” for discussion surrounding litigaties were involved in regarding alleged misapprojiabf unspecified trade secrets and
confidential information.

General economic conditions could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Global economic growth has slowed and has resiftedcessions in numerous countries, including mainhose in North America, Europe ¢
Asia, where the Company does substantially allitobusiness. If these economic conditions contioupersist, or if they worsen, a numbe
negative effects on our business could resultudlioh customers or potential customers reducingetaying orders, the insolvency of key supp
which could result in production delays, the indpibf customers to obtain credit, and the insobyeaf one or more customers. Any of these ef
could impact our ability to effectively manage intery levels and collect receivables, create undigsbcosts due to lower net sales, and ultim
decrease our net sales and profitability includimge-downs of assets.

Werely on resellersto sell our products and services.
We use a variety of distribution channels, inclgd®EMs and distributors, to market our productse May be adversely impacted by any coni
that could arise between and among our various salennels.

Our dependence upon resellers exposes us to nusnésks, including:

« loss of channel and the ability to bring new prdduo market;

« concentration of credit risk, including disruptiondistribution should the resellers’ financial dition deteriorate;
« reduced visibility to end user demand and pricssyes which makes forecasting more difficult;

. resellers leveraging their buying power to chamgetérms of pricing, payment and product delivetyeslules; and



« direct competition should a reseller decide to nfacture printers internally or source printers frarmompetitor.




We cannot guarantee that resellers will not reddeday or eliminate purchases from us, which cchdgle a material adverse effect upon
business, consolidated results of operations avashéial condition.

We have outsourced a large portion of the assembly of our printers to four contract manufacturers and will be dependent on them for the
manufacturing of such printers. A failure by these contract manufacturers, or any disruption in such manufacturing or the flow of product from
these manufacturers, may adversely affect our businessresults.

In an effort to achieve additional cost savings apdration benefits, we have continued to outsotireenanufacturing and assembly of our prir
to contract manufacturers in Asia. Approximated$@of our printer manufacturing is conducted by timiel party manufacturer in Asia.

However, to the extent we rely on a thpdrty service provider for manufacturing servioge, may incur increased business continuity ridk&
will no longer be able to exercise control over #ssembly of certain of our products or any relateerations or processes, including the intt
controls associated with operations and processeducted and the quality of our products assemiedontract manufacturers. If we are un
to effectively develop and implement our outsougcitrategy, we may not realize cost structure iefiicies and our operating and financial re:
could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, if any of our contract manufacturexpe&riences business difficulties or fails to meat manufacturing needs, then we may be unal
meet production requirements, may lose revenue raay not be able to maintain relationships with customers. Without the contr
manufacturers continuing to manufacture our praglactd the continuing operation of the contract rfesturers’facilities, we will have limite
means for the final assembly of a majority of otmducts until we are able to secure the manufagjurapability at another facility or develop
alternative manufacturing facility, which could bestly and time consuming and have a material adveffect on our operating and finan
results.

The increased elements of risk that arise from gotiidg certain operating processes in foreign dlicions may lead to an increase in reputati
risk.

Although we carry business interruption insuraredver lost revenue and profits in an amount wesicter adequate, this insurance does not
all possible situations. In addition, the businiggsrruption insurance would not compensate usHerloss of opportunity and potential adv
impact, both short-term and long-term, on relatiaith our existing customers resulting from ourkiiigdy to produce products for them.

The contract manufacturers have access to outeiatedl property, which increases the risk of imjeément or misappropriation of this intellec
property.

Palitical, social or economic instability in regionsin which our manufacturers are located, could cause disruptionsin trade, including exports to
the U.S.

A significant portion of our printers are manufaet by contract manufacturers overseas and aratexpm the U.S. Any such disruption in trade,
including exports to the U.S., could adversely effaur business results. Events that could caissepdions to such exports to the U.S. include:

« the imposition of additional trade law provisionsregulations;

« reliance on a limited number of shipping and airieas who may experience capacity issues thatradiye affect our ability to sh
inventory in a timely manner or for an acceptalulsty

« the imposition of additional duties, tariffs an¢h@t charges on imports and exports;

« economic uncertainties and adverse economic condifincluding inflation and recession);

« fluctuations in the value of the U.S. Dollar agaifuseign currencies;

« significant labor disputes, such as dock strikes;

« significant delays in the delivery of cargo dugtwt security considerations;

- financial or political instability in any of the aatries in which our printers are manufactured.

We source some of our component parts and consumable products from sole source suppliers; any disruptions may impact our ability to
manufacture and sell our products.

A disruption in the supply of such component pars consumable products could have a material sel\affect on our operations and finar
results.

We sell a significant portion of our products internationally and purchase important components from foreign suppliers. These circumstances
create a number of risks.

We sell a significant amount of our products totomeers outside the United States. Shipments tonat®nal customers are expected to contin
account for a material portion of net sales. Rassociated with sales and purchases outside thiedBiates include:

« fluctuating foreign currency rates could restrigles, or increase costs of purchasing, in fore@mtries;

. foreign governments may impose burdensome tagjtfetas, taxes, trade barriers or capital flow ietgins;

« political and economic instability may reduce deoh&or our products or put our foreign assets &t ris

« restrictions on the export or import of technologsty reduce or eliminate the ability to sell in arghase from certain markets; and

« potentially limited intellectual property proteation certain countries, such as China, may limitotgse against infringing products
cause us to refrain from selling in certain geobraperritories.

We face risks associated with manufacturing forecasts.

If we fail to predict our manufacturing requirememiccurately, we could incur additional costs guegience manufacturing delays, which ct
cause us to lose orders or customers and resldtvier net sales. We currently use a rollingri@nth forecast based primarily on our anticip
product orders and our product order history t@ leitermine our requirements for components anénmaé. It is very important that we accura
predict both the demand for our products and the-time required to obtain the necessary componentsam materials






Lead times for materials and components that werordry significantly and depend on factors suclthasspecific supplier, the size of the or
contract terms, and demand for each componentgitem time. If we underestimate our requirements, may have inadequate manufactu
capacity or inventory, which could interrupt maraitaing of our products and result in delays irpshénts and net sales. If we overestimate
requirements, we could have excess inventory dspéar addition, delays in the manufacturing of puoducts could cause us to lose orde
customers.

In the lottery market, we have been dependent on sales to one large customer; the loss of this customer or reduction in orders from this customer
could materially affect our sales.

We expect that sales to one large customer wilticoa to represent a material percentage of ousales for the foreseeable future. A reduc
delay or cancellation in orders from this customesluding reductions or delays due to market, ecais, or competitive conditions in the indust
in which we serve, could have a material adverfeefipon our results of operations.

Our success will depend on our ability to sustain and manage growth.

As part of our business strategy, we intend to ymiig growth strategy. Assuming this growth occitirgjll require the expansion of distributi
relationships in international markets, the sudcéstevelopment and marketing of new products far existing and new markets, expan
customer service and support, and the continuedemmgmtation and improvement of our operationalaricial and management informat
systems.

To the extent that we seek growth through acqaisdti our ability to manage our growth will also deg@ on our ability to integrate businesses
have previously operated independently. We maybaable to achieve this integration without ent¢ering difficulties or experiencing the loss
key employees, customers or suppliers. It may ifecudt to design and implement effective finankcizontrols for combined operations
differences in existing controls for each businessy result in weaknesses that require remediatibanwthe financial controls and report
functions are combined. As we pursue acquisitiams, may incur legal, accounting and other transactielated expenses for unsucce:
acquisition attempts that could adversely affectresults of operations in the period in which tlaeg incurred.

There can be no assurance that we will be ableu¢oessfully implement our growth strategy, or thet can successfully manage expar
operations, if they occur. As we expand, we maynftime to time experience constraints that wilexdely affect our ability to satisfy custor
demand in a timely fashion. Failure to manage ghaeffectively could adversely affect our result®perations and financial condition.

We compete in highly competitive markets, which are likely to become more competitive. Competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new
or emerging technology and changesin customer requirements.

We face significant competition in developing arellisg our printers, terminals, software, transawtisupplies and services. Our princ
competitors have substantial marketing, finanaalyelopment and personnel resources. To remaimpetitive, we believe we must continue
provide:

« technologically advanced products that satisfyuber demands;
e superior customer service;

« high levels of quality and reliability; and

« dependable and efficient distribution networks.

We cannot ensure we will be able to compete sufidgssgainst current or future competitors. Iresed competition may result in pi
reductions, lower gross profit margins and lossmafrket share, and could require increased spermhingesearch and development, sales
marketing and customer support. Some competitory make strategic acquisitions or establish codiveraelationships with suppliers
companies that produce complementary products. dhtiyese factors could reduce our earnings.

We depend on key personnel, the loss of which could materially impact our business.

Our future success will depend in significant pgybn the continued service of certain key managéermed other personnel and our contini
ability to attract and retain highly qualified maesial, technical and sales and marketing persorfieére can be no assurance that we will be
to recruit and retain such personnel. The lossithier Bart C. Shuldman, the Company's Chairmath@fBoard and Chief Executive Officer,
Steven A. DeMartino, the CompasyPresident, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer &edretary, or the loss of certain groups of kepleyees
could have a material adverse effect on our reséibperations.

If we are unable to enforce our patents or if it is determined that we infringe patents held by othersit could damage our business.

Prosecuting and defending patent lawsuits is vepeesive. We are committed to aggressively asgedimd defending our technology and rel
intellectual property, which we have spent a sigaiit amount of money to develop. These factowdccause us to become involved in new pi
litigation in the future. The expense of proseaytor defending these future lawsuits could alsoehavmaterial adverse effect on our busit
financial condition and results of operations.

If we were to lose a patent lawsuit in which anotparty is asserting that our products infringepi&tents, we would likely be prohibited fr
marketing those products and could also be liadfesifgnificant damages. Either or both of theseltesnay have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openst If we lose a patent lawsuit in which we alainsing that another party’ products a
infringing our patents and thus, are unable to mef@ur patents, it may have a material adverseciefin our business, financial condition
results of operations. In addition to disputesitin to the validity or alleged infringement ohet parties' rights, we may become involve
disputes relating to our assertion of our own latgtial property rights. Whether we are defendiegassertion of intellectual property rights agk
us or asserting our intellectual property rightaiagt others, intellectual property litigation dae& complex, costly, protracted, and highly disng
to business operations by diverting the attentioth @nergies of management and key technical peetoRfaintiffs in intellectual property ca:
often seek injunctive relief, and the measuresasfiages in intellectual property litigation are céempand often subjective or uncertain. Thus,
adverse determinations in this type of litigati@muld subject us to significant liabilities and cdburing the course of these lawsuits there mi
public announcements of the results of hearinggioms, and other interim proceedings or developsanthe litigation. If securities analysts



investors perceive these results to be negatigeuid harm the market price of our stock.




The inability to protect intellectual property could harm our reputation, and our competitive position may be materially damaged.

Our intellectual property is valuable and provideswith certain competitive advantages. Copyrigbésents, trade secrets and contracts are u
protect these proprietary rights. Despite theseautions, it may be possible for third parties tpy aspects of our products or, with
authorization, to obtain and use information whighregard as trade secrets.

Our stock price may fluctuate significantly.
The market price of our common stock could fluatugignificantly in response to variations in qudyteperating results and other factors, such as:

« changes in our business, operations or prospects;

« developments in our relationships with our custamer

« announcements of new products or services by by our competitors;
« announcement or completion of acquisitions by usyoour competitors;
« changes in existing or adoption of additional goveent regulations;

« unfavorable or reduced analyst coverage; and

« prevailing domestic and international market angheenic conditions.

In addition, the stock market has experienced B@amt price fluctuations in recent years. Broaarket fluctuations, general economic condit
and specific conditions in the industries in whieh operate may adversely affect the market pricmiotommon stock.

Limited trading volume and a reduction in analyst coverage of our capital stock may contribute to its price volatility.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global kéar During the year ended December 31, 2014atieeage daily trading volume for «
common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Markas approximately 24,000 shares. We are uncewdhiether a more active trad
market in our common stock will develop. In adutiti many investment banks no longer find it profiégato provide securities research on micro-
cap and smaltap companies. As a result, relatively small tsaghay have a significant impact on the market poiceur common stock, whi
could increase the volatility and depress the pfo@ur common stock.

Future sales of our common stock may cause our stock price to decline.

In the future, we may sell additional shares of coimmon stock in public or private offerings, and may also issue additional shares of
common stock to finance future acquisitions. Sharfeour common stock are also available for fukake pursuant to stock options that we |
granted to our employees, and in the future we grapt additional stock options and other formsadity compensation to our employees. <
of our common stock or the perception that suckssabuld occur may adversely affect prevailing raagkices for shares of our common stock
could impair our ability to raise capital throughfre offerings.

If market conditions deteriorate or future results of operations are less than expected, a valuation allowance may be required for all or a portion
of our deferred tax assets.

We currently have deferred tax assets, which maydaeel to reduce taxable income in the future. Véesssthe realization of these deferrec
assets on a quarterly basis, and if we determiatkittlis more likely than not that some portiontleése assets will not be realized, an incom
valuation allowance is recorded. If market comdisi deteriorate or future results of operationslass than expected, or there is a chan
applicable tax rules, future assessments may riesaltletermination that it is more likely than tia&t some or all of our net deferred tax asse
not realizable. As a result, we may need to estaldi valuation allowance for all or a portion of met deferred tax assets, which may ha
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations and financial condition.

We cannot provide any assurance that current laws, or any laws enacted in the future, will not have a material adverse effect on our business.
Our operations are subject to laws, rules, regaatiincluding environmental regulations, governnpaicies and other requirements in each o
jurisdictions in which we conduct business. Chanigelaws, rules, regulations, policies or requieats could result in the need to modify
products and could affect the demand for our prtsjwehich may have an adverse impact on our futpegating results. If we do not comply v
applicable laws, rules and regulations we couldligect to costs and liabilities and our busineay bre adversely impacted.

I ntangible computer software costs may not be recoverable.

Costs incurred in researching and developing a ctengoftware product are charged to expense testinological feasibility has been establis
at which point all material software costs are taijzied within Intangible assets in our ConsolidaBalance Sheets until the product is availabl
general release to customers. While judgment dgslired in determining when technological feasipilidf a product is established, we h
determined that it is reached after all higgk development issues have been documentedomef detailed plan design. The amortization eft
costs will be included in cost of sales over thenested life of the product. To the extent teclugital feasibility of products is not achiev
related capitalized computer software costs mayaatcoverable.

Our business could be adversely affected by actual or threatened terrorist attacks or the related heightened security measures, military actions
and other efforts to combat terrorism.

Our business could be adversely affected by acu#hreatened terrorist attacks or the relatedhteiged security measures, military actions
other efforts to combat terrorism. It is possitilat terrorist attacks could be directed at impurtacations for the gaming industry. Heighte
security measures and other efforts to combatrismomay also have an adverse effect on the gamihgstry by reducing tourism. Any of the
developments could also negatively affect the gdremonomy and consumer confidence. Any downtartné economy or in the gaming indu:
in particular could reduce demand for our prodwtd adversely affect our business and results efadpns. In addition, heightened sect
measures may cause certain governments to rebkgianport/export of goods, which may have an astvefffect on our ability to buy/sell goods.




Additional risks and uncertainties not presentlyokn to us or that we currently believe to be immiatealso may adversely impact «
business. Should any risks or uncertainties develto actual events, these developments could haaterial adverse effects on our busir
financial condition, and results of operations.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable

Item 2. Properties.
Our principal facilities as of December 31, 2014 &sted below and we believe that all facilitiesngrally are in good condition, adequa
maintained and suitable for their present and otlgreontemplated uses.

Size

(Approx. Sq. Owned or Lease Expiration
Location Operations Conducted Ft.) Leased Date
Hamden, Connectict Executive offices and Printrex and TSG sales o 11,10( Leasec April 23, 2017
Ithaca, New Yorl Global engineering, design, assembly and servitiétja 73,90( Leasec May 31, 201¢€
Las Vegas, Nevac Service center and casino and gaming sales ¢ 13,70( Leasec December 31, 201
Doncaster, United Kingdol Sales office and service cen 2,80( Leasec August 1, 201¢
Houston, Texa Sales office and service cen 1,35(C Leasec April 30, 2015
Georgia and New Yor Two regional sales office 30C Leasec Various
Macau, China Sales office 18C Leased June 30, 2015

103,33(

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On June 8, 2012, Avery Dennison Corporation (“AEI8d a civil complaint against the Company anderfer employee of the Company an
AD, in the Court of Common Pleas (the “Court”) iake County, Ohio (the “AD Lawsuit”)The complaint alleged that this former employee
the Company misappropriated unspecified trade teared confidential informationfrom AD related to the design of our food safetyntimals.
The complaint requested a preliminary and permaimgumiction against the Company from manufactuingl selling our Ithaca®700 and 98C
food safety terminals. On July 16, 2012, the Camgpfiled its answer, affirmative defenses and cereidims, seeking all available dame
including legal fees. A hearing on the plaintifffetion for preliminary injunction took place in 4ust 2012, and in November 2012, the C
denied this request. AD filed an appeal of the €suuling to the Eleventh Appellate District, whicbhard oral arguments on the appeal on Jul
2013. On July 23, 2013, AD requested that the @fittv Appellate District enjoin the Compasyfurther sale and marketing of the food st
terminals, pending the appeals court's decisionJwn 29, 2013, the Company opposed this requeastO€tober 15, 2013, the Eleventh Dis!
Court of Appeals affirmed the lower court’s decisio the Company’s favor and denied Afurther request of an injunction pending the €of
Appeal’s decision. On October 24, 2013, AD filed a mosieeking that the Court of Appeals reconsidereétsision. On April 16, 2014, the Co
of Appeals denied A motion to reconsider its decision. On July ZBL4 AD filed a motion requesting leave from theu@do file an amende
complaint and indicating that it has elected tosperonly its claim for damages, dropping its cléminjunctive relief. On September 4, 2014,
Court granted ADs motion to file an amended complaint. On Septeni#tte 2014, the Company filed its answer, affirvatdefenses al
counterclaims with respect to the amended compla@gking all available damages including legas.fe®n January 30, 2015, the Company fil
motion for summary judgment seeking judgment irofasf the Company on all counts as to the Compdbdy.the same day, AD filed two motic
for partial summary judgment. On February 17, 2ath6 Company opposed both of AD’s motions, and @ddposed the Compars/motion. O
February 23, 2015, the Company filed a reply hirnefupport of its motion for summary judgment. rialtwas scheduled to begin on April 21, 2(
however, on March 25, 2015 the parties executezhfidential settlement agreement and release @e¢tlement Agreementih which the partie
mutually agreed to resolve the dispute that wasthigect of the lawsuit filed by AD against the Gumny to the partieshutual satisfaction. Und
the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the Companged to pay AD $3,600,000 payable on or beford 8p2015 and also to qualify certain
labels for use on the Compasyfood safety terminals at an estimated cost ofGf#5 The Company recorded the total expense ,62$300 in th
fourth quarter 2014 as an operating expense indludethe line item “Legal fees and settlement esgsnassociated with lawsuitn the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and as artuiability included in the line item “Accrued lawit settlement expensesi the Consolidate
Balance Sheet.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global kéaunder the symbol TACT. As of February 27, 2ah&re were 379 holders of recort
the common stock. The high and low bid sales prafethe common stock reported during each quaftére years ended December 31, 2014
2013 were as follows:

Year Endec Year Endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $ 12.9¢ $ 9.8( $ 8.2( $ 7.1t
Second Quarte 11.5(C 9.12 8.5(C 7.22
Third Quatrtel 10.4¢ 6.4= 13.1¢ 7.7
Fourth Quarte 6.9¢ 5.1¢ 15.2¢ 11.5¢

In September 2012, we announced that our Boardiretcrs approved the initiation of a quarterlytcavidend program which is subject to



Board's approval each quarter. On May 6, 2014, our Bo&i@irectors declared an increase to the quartaih dividend from $0.07 per shar
$0.08 per share. Dividends declared and paid oe@umon stock totaled $2,556,000 or $0.31 pereshad $2,317,000 or $0.27 per share, in
and 2013, respectively .On February 4, 2015, our Board of Directors appdothe first quarter 2015 dividend in the amoun®$0f08 per sha
payable on or about March 13, 2015 to common slédels of record at the close of business on Fep2@ 2015.




Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On August 11, 2014, our Board of Directors approxeew stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepseRrogram”). Under the Stock
Repurchase Program, we are authorized to repurcipae$7,500,000 of our outstanding shares of comstock from time to time in the open
market through July 31, 2015, depending on mardedlitions, share price and other factors. On Nd&m3, 2014, our Board of Directors
modified the Stock Repurchase Program to include¢purchase of up to $4,000,000 of the Companytstanding shares through April 30, 2015
pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan though marB ended this trading plan effective March 31,520We use the cost method to account for
treasury stock purchases, under which the priag fpaithe stock is charged to the treasury stockaist. Repurchases of our common stock are
accounted for as of the settlement date. From g, 2014 through December 31, 2014, we purché3€®98 shares of our common stock for
approximately $2,634,000 at an average price pEestf $6.06. In 2013, under a prior purchasenamgand an open market transaction, we
purchased 604,161 shares of common stock for appately $5,194,000 at an average price of $8.6@mRJanuary 1, 2005 through December
2014, we repurchased a total of 3,222,036 sharesmion stock for approximately $25,161,000, aheaerage price of $7.81 per share. See
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for moréarmation.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative togalim on the Company’Common Stock from December 31, 2009 through Dbeerdl, 201«
with the CRSP Total Return Index for the NasdacclStdarket (U.S.) and the Nasdaq Computer Manufact8tocks Index. The graph assu
that $100 was invested on December 31, 2009 in ehdmansActs common stock, the CRSP Total Return Index forNhedag Stock Mark
(U.S.) and the Nasdaq Computer Manufacturer Stbdesx, and that all dividends were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG
TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED COMMON STOCK,
THE CRSP TOTAL RETURN INDEX FOR THE NASDAQ STOCK MA RKET (U.S)),
AND THE NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURER STOCKS INDEX
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TransAct Technologies Incorporated
Common Stocl $ 100.0C $ 135.7: % 104.6: $ 104.0: % 180.5¢ % 78.8:%
CRSP Total Return Index for the Nasc
Stock Market (U.S. $ 100.0C $ 11758 % 117.9: % 137.2¢ % 183.2¢ $ 206.0¢
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Index $ 100.0¢ $ 1235 % 1295 % 155.2¢ $ 182.6: $ 247.6(
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands, exgeper share amounts)
The following is summarized from our audited finahstatements of the past five years:

Year ended December &

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Statement of Operations D
Net sales $ 53,10¢ $ 60,14. $ 68,38t $ 65,96¢ $ 63,19¢
Gross profit 21,71 25,09: 25,98: 24,62¢ 22,54¢
Operating expenst¢ 25,48: 18,47¢ 20,38( 17,631 16,681
Operating (loss) incor (3,772 6,61 5,60z 6,98¢ 5,861
Net (loss) incom (2,421 4,93t 3,621 4,67¢ 3,90¢
Net (loss) income per shal
Basic (0.29; 0.57 0.4C 0.5C 0.4z
Diluted (0.29; 0.57 0.4C 0.4¢ 0.41
Dividends declared and paid per sh 0.31 0.27 0.0€ - -
December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheet D¢
Total asset $ 35,49 $ 40,40¢ $ 4522¢ % 42,740 $ 43,62:
Working capital 18,36: 24.87: 25,49 27,22 25,52t
Shareholder equity 25,39 32,52 33,36 35,31 31,13¢

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.
This discussion should be read in conjunction withConsolidated Financial Statements and notestthe

Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements included in this report, inchgliwithout limitation statements in this Manageremiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations, which are Inigtorical facts are “forward-looking statementstithin the meaning of Section 27A of
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Sectioro2itie Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amerdward{ooking statements generally ¢

be identified by the use of forward-looking ternhagy, such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “intend”, "e stimate”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “project”

or “continue” or the negative thereof or other sian words. All forwardlooking statements involve risks and uncertaintiesluding, but nc
limited to those listed in Item 1A of this Annu&pRrt. Actual results may differ materially frohose discussed in, or implied by, the forward-
looking statements. The forward-looking statemspé&ak only as of the date of this report and veei@& no duty to update them.

Overview

During 2014, we completed the transition of ouribess towards new, valded products and technologies that address #ardeliversifie:
growth markets while moving away from the low margiommoditized POS market. During the past thieses we have spent significant time
resources developing new products such as theal@¢00 food safety terminal, EPICENTRAL™ software floe casino and gaming industry
our Printrex®920 and 980 color printers for the oil and gas stdu With this development phase now behind ws,can reduce these exper
going forward as we believe we now have the rightpcts to effectively compete in our markets.

During 2014, our sales and operating results dedlolue mainly to what we believe is a general wes&iin the replacement cycle in the dom
casino and gaming market. In an effort to addteesongoing challenges of the domestic casino nhaxkd the related impact to our opera
results, during the fourth quarter of 2014 we @éd cost reduction actions that will reduce expensy at least $1 million on an annual k
beginning in the first quarter of 2015. Whilestdifficult to predict when a rebound will occurtime domestic casino and gaming market, w
lower overall cost structure and focus on sales@i@n we expect 2015 to be a much improved year..

During 2014, our total net sales decreased 12%pooaimately $53,108,000. See the table belovafbreakdown of our sales by market:

Year ende( Year ende( Change

(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Food safety, banking and P( $ 9,30¢ 17.5% $ 11,29¢ 188% $ (1,988 (17.6%
Casino and gamin 22,73: 42.8% 27,30( 45.4% (4,569 (16.7%
Lottery 4,761 9.0% 4,45( 7.4% 311 7.0%
Printrex 3,91¢( 7.4% 4,33t 7.2% (425; (9.8%,
TSG 12,39¢ 23.3% 12,76( 21.2% (362 (2.8%,

Total net sales $ 53,10¢ 100.0% $ 60,14 100.0% $ (7,033 (11.7%

Sales of our food safety, banking and POS prodimtseased 18% in 2014 compared to 2013. Durig,28ur Ithaca®700 food safety termin
sales declined 50% due to a large initial stoclorgder to a distributor that occurred in 2013 thidt mbt repeat in 2014. However, we expect
distributor to begin ordering product again in 20However, we have received corporate approvah faogrowing number of large, national br
restaurants for the Ithaca 9700 and we expecptioiduct to be a significant contributor to our newe growth in 2015 and beyondn the bankin
market, we focus mainly on supplying printers feeun bank teller stations at banks and finanaostitutions primarily in the U.S. Opportunities
the banking market are project oriented and, @&salt; our banking printer sales can fluctuateiigmtly year-toyear. During 2014, our banki
printer sales decreased 31%. In the POS marketpeus primarily on supplying printers that prieceipts or linerless labels for customers ir
restaurant, hospitality and specialty retail maske$ales of our POS printers increased 9% in 20idarily driven by sales of our Ithaca @0(
printers to McDonald as they accelerated a rollout of these printara hew initiative. Our focus for 2015 will be sales execution with the g
of increasing market penetration with each of aw products
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Sales of our casino and gaming products decreag#dil 2014 compared to 2013. In our casino andimgmarket, our focus lies primarily
supplying printers for use in slot machines atrasiand racetracks, as well as in other electrgaiing devices that print tickets or recei
worldwide. Additionally, we supplement these pringales with revenue from EPICENTRAL™our promotional printing system that ena
casino operators to create promotional couponsmaartteting messages and print them real time asltftenachine. Domestic casino and gar
sales decreased 32%, from general weakness irefitcement cycle in the domestic casino marketyelsas a large replacement of a cel
OEM'’s slot machines at a multiroperty casino group in 2013 that did not reppa2014. In addition, EPICENTRAL ™ software salesrdase
47% due to only one installation 2014 comparedxa@ampleted installations during 2013. Interoatl sales increased by 3%, primarily due
3% increase in sales of our thermal casino printdren compared to 2013 and the sale of an EPICENTRAoftware system internatione
during 2014. These increases were partially offged 13% decline in sales of our gifemises thermal gaming printers, mainly from ourdpea
distributor and Australian and Asian customers.

In the lottery market, we continue to hold a legdiosition based on our lorigrm exclusive relationship with GTECH, our largesstomer and tt
world’s largest provider of lottery terminals. GTECH Heeen our customer since 1995, and we continueaiotain a good relationship w
them. In 2009 we expanded our losignding relationship with GTECH by executing a rexglusive purchase agreement to develop and <
them with their next generation online thermaldogtprinter. Pursuant to this agreement, GTECHuskeely purchases all of its requirements
thermal online lottery printers from us and we exclusivelyl sech printers to GTECH through May 8, 2015. @atly, we fulfill substantially a
of GTECH?’s printer requirements for lottery terminal insttibns and upgrades worldwide. During 2014, tptaiter sales to GTECH increa:
approximately 7%, compared to 2013. Our sales t&@G each year are directly dependent on the tiraimdynumber of new and upgraded lot
terminal installations GTECH performs and are mutidative of GTECHS overall business or revenue. However based omrduorders ar
forecasts from GTECH, we expect sales in 2015 toidpeer than in 2014, especially during the firalf lof 2015.

Sales of our Printrex branded printers include Wiatenat, rack mounted and vehicle mounted thermatgrs used by customers to log and plot oil
field and down hole well drilling data in the oitdigas exploration industry. Sales in this maakstb includes wide format printers used to prist
results in ophthalmology devices in the medicalstdy, as well as vehicle mounted printers usqatittt schematics and certain other critical
information in emergency services vehicles andratiebile printing applications. During 2014, we tedid revenue contributions from our new
Printrex® 920 and Printrex® 980 oil and gas colonters developed in 2012. We believe that ovaetisales of our color printers will increase as
these printers provide customers with more valugada printed in color is easier to read and armetlgan the same data printed in black and white.
Despite the increase in color printer sales, Ranfirinter sales for 2014 decreased by approximat&e primarily due to the negative impact of
steeply declining worldwide oil prices, as wellaas11% decline in the medical and mobile markeRdh5, we expect initial revenue contributions
from the Responder MP2™, as we plan to introducdimt printer for the large machine-to-machine2M)) vertical market. The Responder
MP2™ is an all-in-one mobile printing solution @mnumber of vehicles, including fire, police, EMiSsurance, public utilities and delivery.

Our TSG group, which sells service, replacemertsgard consumable products, including receipt paji@yons and inkjet cartridges, continues to
offer a recurring revenue stream for the Compafn$G sales decreased 3% in 2014 from 2013 primduiéy/to lower sales of non-Printrex
consumables compared to 2013 from the effect otdWP inkjet cartridge sales as we deemphasizéoous on this commoditized product. This
decrease was patrtially offset by higher replacerparttsales and Printrex color printer consumaalesswhich should continue to increase as the
installed base of these printers grows.

Operationally, our gross margin declined to 40.98mf41.7% in 2013. Our gross margin for 2014 wasaiated by lower sales of our higher ma
value-added casino printers, food safety terminald EPICENTRAL®iInstallations compared to 2013. In 2014 we inalienegative operati
margin of 7.1% compared to a positive operatinggimanf 11.0% in 2013. The negative operating nraingi2014 resulted mainly from $5.5 milli
in legal and settlement expenses we incurred retatéhe AD Lawsuit that we settled in March 2018 ¢0 a lesser extent, lower gross margins
to sales declines.

We reported a net loss of $2,421,000 and net lesslifuted share of $0.29 for 2014, compared toimzame of $4,935,000 and net income
diluted share of $0.57 in 2013. In terms of cdshw ffor 2014, we experienced a very strong yeanegating over $6.0 million of cash fr
operating activities. We also returned almost $8,200 to our shareholders in the form of $2,633 f@@ treasury share repurchases and $2,55
for cash dividends while still finishing the yeaithvcash and cash equivalents of $3,131,000 andefd on our Consolidated Balance She
December 31, 2014.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimi
judgments and assumptions that affect both Bal&he®t items and Statement of Income categoriesh &timates and judgments are based
historical experience and certain assumptionsatabelieved to be reasonable in the particulaupistances. We evaluate our assumptions
ongoing basis by comparing actual results withesiimates. Actual results may differ from the orig) estimates.

The following accounting policies are those that lvedieve to be most critical in the preparationoaf financial statements. These items ut
assumptions and estimates about the effect ofdutuents that are inherently uncertain and areethier based on our judgment. Please ref
Note 2— Summary of significant accounting policies in the@mpanying Consolidated Financial Statements famaplete listing of our accounti
policies.

Revenue Recognition — Our typical contracts include the sale of pristand terminals, which are sometimes accompaniesepgratelypricec
extended warranty contracts. We also sell replacgrparts, consumables, and other repair servamsdtimes pursuant to mujtear produc
maintenance contracts), which are not includedhi driginal printer sale and are ordered by thedomosr as needed. We recognize rew:
pursuant to the guidance within Accounting StansldBadification (“ASC”) 605, “Revenue RecognitionA$C 605). Specifically, revenue
recognized when evidence of an arrangement existisjery (based on shipping terms which are geheFDB shipping point) has occurred,
selling price is fixed and determinable, and calbdity is reasonably assured. We recognize reggom the sale of printers and terminals tc
distributors and resellers on a sellbasis and on substantially the same terms ageagnize revenue from all our other customers. pvéeide fo
an estimate of product returns and price protedimsed on historical experience at the time ofmegaecognition.
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Our software solution, EPICENTRAIM , enables casino operators to create promotionglarts and marketing messages and to print thegaln r
time at the slot machine. R evenue arrangemenB8RCENTRAL™ include multiple deliverables and as a result sartangements are accour
for in accordance with both ASC 605-25, “MultipléeEhent Arrangements” and ASC 985-605, “SoftwarEPICENTRAL ™ is primarily
comprised of both a software component, whichdsrised to the customer, and a hardware compoBEHCENTRAL™ contains both softwe
and hardware that are integrated to deliver théesys full functionality. These arrangements atecainted for in accordance with ASC 605-
“Multiple-Element Arrangements’"EPICENTRAL™ can also include an additional softwaféering, Mobile Host, that allows the custome
access certain applications on mobile devices. ilddtost is accounted for in accordance with ASG-885, “Software”as Mobile Host softwa
does not function together with the hardware detacdeliver its essential functionality.

Revenue, inclusive of software license fees, iegaly recognized upon installation and formal gtaece by the customer with the exception of
any amount allocated to free maintenance whiclefierded and recognized over the initial maintengreréd, generally one year.

For EPICENTRAL™ and other multiple deliverable arrangements, wesiciem whether the deliverables in an arrangementvithin the scope
existing higher-level GAAP and apply such literatuo the extent that it provides guidance regardihgther to separate multiptieliverabl
arrangements and how to allocate value among thesarate units of accounting. When we enteramuultiple deliverable arrangement, we
determine whether revenue arrangements consistood than one unit of accounting. At that time, allecate arrangement consideration tc
separate units of accounting based on a relatilingserice hierarchy, except where amounts alléeab the delivered units is limited to that wk
is contingent upon the delivery of additional deliables or meeting other specified performance itiond. The relative selling price for et
element is based upon the following selling pri@rdrchy: vendor specific objective evidence (“VSDIE available, third party evidence (“TPE”
if VSOE is not available, or best estimate of sgllprice (‘“BESP”) to the extent that VSOE or TPE aot available.

Revenue related to extended warranty and produtitemance contracts is recognized pursuant to AG&20-25, Separately Priced Extenc
Warranty and Product Maintenance ContracRursuant to this guidance, revenue related to atparpriced product maintenance contrac
deferred and recognized over the term of the maamee period. We record deferred revenue for advaayments received from customers
maintenance contracts.

Our customers have the right to return products dioanot function properly within a limited timetaf delivery. We monitor and track prod
returns and record a provision for the estimatedréureturns based on historical experience. Rsthave historically been within expectations
the provisions established, but we cannot guarahtgeve will continue to experience return ratessistent with historical patterns.

We offer some of our customers price protectiommasncentive to carry inventory of our product.e$h price protection plans provide that i1
lower prices, we will credit them for the price dese on inventory they hold. Our customers t¥igicarry limited amounts of inventory, and
infrequently lower prices on current products. &gesult, the amounts paid under these plans havédaen material. However, we car
guarantee that this minimal level will continue.

We charge our customers for shipping and handimgices. The amounts billed to customers are dezbas revenue when the product ships.
costs incurred related to these services are indlird cost of sales.

Accounts Receivable — We have standardized credit granting and revievciesl and procedures for all customer accountdirg: credit review
of all new customer accounts; ongoing credit eux@na of current customers; credit limits and pagiterms based on available credit informat
and adjustments to credit limits based upon payrhistory and the customercurrent creditworthiness. We also provide aimede of doubtft
accounts based on historical experience and spextifitomer collection issues. Our allowance farbdful accounts as of December 31, 2014
approximately $100,000, or approximately 1.1% dfstanding accounts receivable, which we feel is@mate considering the overall quality
our accounts receivable. While credit losses Hasmrically been within expectations and the resgrestablished, we cannot guarantee the
credit loss experience will continue to be consisteth historical experience.

Inventories — Our inventories are stated at the lower of cpsn¢ipally standard cost, which approximates datoat on a first-in, firsbut basis) ¢
market. We review market value based on histonisslge and estimates of future demand. Assumptomgeviewed at least quarterly

adjustments are made, as necessary, to reflectgicigamarket conditions. Based on these reviewgentory writedowns are recorded,

necessary, to reflect estimated obsolescence, £xgemtities and market value. Should circumssmrtange and we determine that additi
inventory is subject to obsolescence, additiondtleadowns of inventory could result in a chargénmome.

Goodwill and Intangible Asse t s— We acquire businesses in purchase transactionsethiat in the recognition of goodwill and intanigitasset:
The determination of the value of intangible assetpuires management to make estimates and assmsiptn accordance with Account
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350-20 “Goodwillacquired goodwill is not amortized but is subjecirhpairment testing at least annually
when an event occurs or circumstances changeinitiatte it is more likely than not an impairmenrtsés. Factors considered that may trigge
impairment review are: significant underperformanelative to expected historical or projected fatoperating results; significant changes ir
manner of use of acquired assets or the strategydooverall business; significant negative indust economic trends; and significant declin
market capitalization relative to net book valuefibite lived intangible assets are amortized ardtested for impairment when appropriate.
reported $2,621,000 of goodwill and $1,341,000 dmortized definitdived intangible assets at December 31, 2014. We ldatermined that |
goodwill impairment has occurred based on our assest as of December 31, 2014 when the impairnestew is performed.

Income Taxes — In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statememésare required to estimate income taxes in e&thegurisdictions in whic
we operate. This involves estimating the actuateru tax exposure together with assessing tempdifferences between the tax basis of ce
assets and liabilities and their reported amountke financial statements, as well as net opayaddisses, tax credits and other carryforwards.s@
differences result in deferred tax assets andliligisi which are included within our Consolidatedlance Sheets. We then assess the likelihoo
the deferred tax assets will be realized from fittaxable income, and to the extent that we belibae realization is not likely, we establis
valuation allowance.
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Significant judgment is required in determining tirevision for income taxes and, in particular, aajuation allowance or tax reserves with res
to our deferred tax assets and uncertain tax pasitiOn a quarterly basis, we evaluate the reabildty of our deferred tax assets based 1
historical results and forecasted taxable incoma éwture years, and match this forecast agairsb#tsis differences, deductions available in fi
years and the limitations allowed for net operatogs and tax credit carryforwards to ensure thertet is adequate support for the realization ¢
deferred tax assets. While we have considereddutixable income and ongoing prudent and feasdblglanning strategies in assessing the
for a valuation allowance or tax reserve, in thergwe were to determine that we would not be @blealize all or part of our deferred tax asse
the future, an adjustment to the valuation alloveaoctax reserves would be charged as a reduaiorcdome in the period such determination
made. Likewise, should we determine that we wangdible to realize future deferred tax assets ée®xof its net recorded amount, an adjust
to the valuation allowance or tax reserves woutdgase net income in the period such determinatgsmade.

We account for income taxes in accordance with A8Q, “Income Taxes.”Among other things this provision prescribes a mimin recognitio
threshold that an income tax position must meetreeit is recorded in the reporting entgtyfinancial statements. It also requires that ffects o
such income tax positions be recognized only ibfathe balance sheet reporting date, it is “mikely than not” {.e., more than a 50% likelihoc
that the income tax position will be sustained Hasaely on its technical merits. When making tesessment, management must assume tl
responsible taxing authority will examine the in@tax position and have full knowledge of all relet/facts and other pertinent information.
accounting guidance also clarifies the method afwng for interest and penalties when there isfierdnce between the amount claimed
expected to be claimed, on a company’s incomeetaxnms and the benefits recognized in the finarsta@&kements.

Warranty — We generally warrant our products for up to 36 rherdnd record the estimated cost of such produckniges at the time the sale
recorded. Estimated warranty costs are based agoial past experience of product repairs andefaed estimated cost of labor and materi
make the necessary repairs. If actual future prodkpair rates or the actual costs of materiallabdr differ from the estimates, adjustments &
accrued warranty liability and related warranty exge would be made.

Contingencies — We record an estimated liability related to continges based on our estimates of the probable meg@ursuant to ASC 4!
“Contingencies.”On a quarterly basis, we assess the potentialitiabélated to pending litigation, audits and atleentingencies and confirm
revise estimates and reserves as appropriatée [attual liabilities are settled in an amount gme¢han those recorded on the balance sh
charge to income would be recorded. As of Decer8tier2014 and 2013, a contingent liability of $0 &&D,000, respectively, was recorde
connection with a contingent consideration arrang@nentered into as part of the Printrex acquisitithe decrease of $60,000 was the result ¢
revised estimate of the expected payout in conmegtiith this arrangement primarily due to changeprobabilities and decreases in revenue
gross margin estimates, and was credited to geardshdministrative expense during 2014. See Nttett®e Consolidated Financial Statement
further discussion.

Share-Based Compensation — We calculate share-based compensation expensacdordance with ASC 718, “Compensation Stock
Compensation” using the Black-Scholes option-pgcmodel to calculate the fair value of shhesed awards. The key assumptions for
valuation method include the expected term of aiomrant, stock price volatility, riskee interest rate, dividend yield, and forfeituage. Th
determination of these assumptions is based orhgsisty and future expectations, and is subje@tdgment. To the extent any of the assump
were to change from year to year, the fair valueest option grants may vary significantly.

Results of Operations: Year ended December 31, 20tdmpared to year ended December 31, 2013

Net Sales. Net sales, which include printer, terminal anfivgare sales as well as sales of replacement patsumables and maintenance
repair services, by market for the years ended mbee 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change

(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Food safety, banking and P( $ 9,30¢ 17.5% $ 11,29¢ 188% $ (1,988 (17.6%
Casino and gamin 22,73: 42.8% 27,30( 45.4% (4,569 (16.7%
Lottery 4,761 9.0% 4,45( 7.4% 311 7.0%
Printrex 3,91( 7.4% 4,33t 7.2% (425; (9.8%,
TSG 12,39¢ 23.3% 12,76( 21.2% (362 (2.8%,

$ 53,10¢ 100.0% $ 60,14 100.0% $ (7,033 (11.7%
International* $ 14,54: 274% % 13,76« 229% $ 777 5.6%

International sales do not include sales of prsteade to domestic distributors or other customisin
* turn ship those printers to international destonati

Net sales for 2014 decreased $7,033,000, or 128% #013. Printer and terminal sales volume deerkd9% to approximately 138,000 u
primarily due to declines in the casino and gamany] food safety, banking and POS markets, of 1686786, respectively. The average se
price of our printers decreased approximately 3&mfr2013 to 2014 due primarily to lower sales of éawd safety terminals which havt
significantly higher average selling price than tnafsour other printers. Overall, internationalesaincreased $777,000, or 6%, primarily drive
higher sales in both the international casino amdigg and TSG markets.
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Food safety, banking and PO Revenue from the food safety, banking and POSehancludes sales of food safety terminladseware device
that consist of a touchscreen and one or two thepriat mechanisms, that print easysad expiration and "enjoy by" date labels to
restaurants effectively manage food rotation arallage. Revenue from this market also includesssaf inkjet, thermal and impact printers t
primarily by retailers in the restaurant (includifige dining, casual dining and fast food), hodfitaand specialty retail industries to print rgate
for consumers, validate checks, or print on liregléabels or other inserted media. In additiomemee includes sales of printers used by bi
credit unions and other financial institutions tinpreceipts and/ or validate checks at bank teitations. A summary of sales of our worldwi
food safety, banking and POS products for the yeaded December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
('In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 8,98¢ 96.5% $ 10,95¢ 97.0% $ (1,972 (18.0%
International 324 3.5% 34C 3.0% (16) 4.7%
$ 9,30¢ 100.0% $ 11,29¢ 100.0% $ (1,988 (17.6%

The decrease in domestic food safety, banking & product revenue from 2013 was primarily drivgridwer sales from our Ithaca@700 fooc
safety terminal due to a large initial stockingerdo a distributor that occurred in 2013 and did repeat in 2014. We expect this distributc
begin ordering products again in 2015. This desgemas partially offset by higher sales of ourdd®@ 9000 printers to McDonakl'during 201
compared to 2013, as they accelerated a rollothtesfe printers for a new initiative.

International food safety, banking and POS pristdes for 2014 were relatively consistent with 2013

Casino and gaming: Revenue from the casino and gaming market inslgdées of printers used in slot machines, vidderlpterminals (“VLTs),
and other gaming machines that print tickets oeips instead of issuing coins (“ticket-in, ticl@it” or “TITO”) at casinos and racetra
(“racinos”) and other gaming venues worldwide. &aye from this market also includes sales of mintesed in the international gffemist
gaming market in gaming machines such as AmusemihtPrizes (“AWP"), Skills with Prizes (“SWP"and Fixed Odds Betting Termin
(“FOBT") at non<casino gaming establishments. Revenue from thikebhalso includes royalties related to our patertasino and gamit
technology. In addition, casino and gaming mar&eenue includes sales of our software solutionCERTRAL ™, that enables casino opera
to create promotional coupons and marketing message to print them real-time at the slot machidesummary of sales of our worldwide cas
and gaming products for the years ended Decemh&@03# and 2013 is as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 10,431 459% $ 15,367 56.3% $ (4,930 (32.1%
International 12,29: 54.1% 11,93: 43.7% 361 3.0%
$ 22,73: 100.0% $ 27,30( 100.0% $ (4,569 (16.7%

The decrease in both domestic hardware and softeas@éo and gaming sales from 2013 resulted prigjn&dm general weakness in -
replacement cycle in the domestic casino marketedisas a large replacement of a certain OEM’s slachines at a mulfifoperty casino group
2013 that did not repeat in 2014. Domestic safesuo thermal Epic 950 gaming printer decreased 27%014 compared to 2013. In addit
EPICENTRAL™ software sales fell 78% in 2014 complate 2013 due to no new domestic installations ooy in 2014 compared to fi
installations in 2013.

The increase in international sales is due to arease in sales of our thermal EPIC 950 printer BREICENTRAL ™ software sales of 4% a
106%, respectively. The increase in EPICENTRAL ftveare sales is due to one large mpitéperty installation for a customer in South Aroe
in 2014 compared to two smaller installations iL20 These increases were partially offset by desme sales of our offremises thermal gami
printers of 13% in 2014 when compared to 2013 e$al our off-premise gaming printers are largealgjgrt-oriented, and we therefore car
predict the level of future sales.

Lottery : Revenue from the lottery market includes salethermal online and other lottery printers to GTECH and itbsdiaries for variot
lottery applications. A summary of sales of our laaide lottery printers for the years ended Decen®ie 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 4,68 98.3% $ 4,417 99.3% $ 26E 6.0%
International 79 1.7% 33 0.7% 46 139.4%
$ 4,761 100.0% $ 4,45( 100.0% $ 311 7.0%

Our sales to GTECH are directly dependent on theng and number of new and upgraded lottery terhiivsdiallations GTECH performs, and ¢
result, may fluctuate significantly quarter-to-gigarand year-to-year and are not indicative of GHECoverall business or revenue. Based ol
backlog of orders and customeforecast, we expect total sales to GTECH for 2018e higher than those reported in 2014, espgéiathe firs
half of 2015.

Printrex: Printrex branded printers are sold into markeds ithclude wide format, rack mounted and vehiclaimied black/white and color therr
printers used by customers to log and plot oildfiehd down hole well drilling data in the oil andsgexploration industry. It also includes high-
speed color inkjet desktop printers used to pogslat data centers of the oil and gas field sere@mpanies. Revenue in this market also inc
sales of wide format printers used to print testults in ophthalmology devices in the medical indysas well as vehicle mounted printers use
print schematics and certain other critical infotioin emergency services vehicles and other reglrinting applications.A summary of sales

our worldwide Printrex printers for the years en@stember 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thods, except percentage



(In thousands)

Domestic
International

Year ende( Year ende( Change

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
3,357 85.7% $ 3,712 85.6% $ (360; (9.7%
55¢ 14.3% 622 14.4% (65) (10.4%
3,91( 100.0% $ 4,33¢ 100.0% $ (425 (9.8%
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The decrease in Printrex printers is primarily du®% lower worldwide sales of printers in the aild gas market due to the negative impa
steeply declining worldwide oil prices which we expwill continue to negatively impact our salesinlyg 2015. In addition, worldwide sales of
medical and mobile printers declined 11% due toelogales to a medical printer customer that beggrhise out the use of our printer du
2014. We expect our last sale to this customerctar in the first quarter of 2015 with no futuseected shipments. Due to the low margin or
product, we do not believe the loss of this custowit have a material adverse impact to our 20férating results.

TSG: Revenue from TSG includes sales of consumabldugts (inkjet cartridges, ribbons, receipt papetorcthermal paper and other print
supplies), replacement parts, maintenance andrrepaiices, testing services, refurbished printensl, shipping and handling charges. A sumi
of sales in our worldwide TSG market for the yeamded December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 11,11% 89.6% $ 11,92¢ 935% $ (813; (6.8%,
International 1,28¢ 10.4% 83t 6.5% 451 54.0%
$ 12,39¢ 100.0% $ 12,76( 100.0% $ (362 (2.8%,

The decrease in domestic revenue from TSG is pilyridue to a 15% decrease in sales of Roimtrex consumables, largely from the decline &
inkjet cartridges, as we continue to deemphasiize dbmmoditized consumable product. As a result,exeect sales of HP inkjet cartridge:
continue to decline in 2015. In addition, serviegenue declined by 29%, largely due to a 57% dedin paper testing service revenue a:
performed fewer tests in 2014 than in 2013, as a®llower maintenance and repair revenue from ferrice contracts. These decreases
partially offset by a 10% increase in sales ofaepment parts as well as a 78% increase of consesnin our new Printrex color printers, wh
we expect to continue to increase during 2015 egndtalled base of these printers grows.

Internationally, TSG revenue increased due primddlhigher sales of replacement parts and acdessas compared to 2013. We expect
sales in 2015 to be relatively consistent with 2Gisiwe expect lower HP inkjet cartridges will effhigher expected sales of consumables fror
newly launched Printrex color oil and gas printers.

Gross Profit. Gross profit information is summarized belowtfiousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year endec $ 21,71: $ 25,09: (13.5% 40.9% 41.7%

Gross profit is measured as revenue less costle$,sahich includes primarily the cost of all ravatarials and component parts, direct s
manufacturing overhead expenses, cost of finisheduets purchased directly from our contract mactufers and expenses associated
installations and maintenance of EPICENTRAL®ross profit decreased $3,381,000, or 14%, on 1@&ed sales volume and a slightly |
favorable sales mix. Additionally, our gross mardeclined by 80 basis points due to lower sal@sritmtions from our value-added Ithac&0(
food safety terminals, casino printers and EPICENIR' software. We expect our gross margin for 2@dincrease as we expect to benefit f
increased sales of our newer, value-added prodagtsell as cost reduction initiatives we initiatedhe fourth quarter 2014.

Engineering, Design and Product Development. Engineering, design and product development imédion is summarized below (in thousai
except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year endec $ 430z $ 4,06t 5.8% 8.1% 6.8%

Engineering, design and product development exgemsmarily include salary and payroll related exges for our engineering staff, deprecic
and design expenses (including prototype printpeasges, outside design and testing services, gpliess). Such expenses increased $237,0!
6%, due primarily to additional engineering staffiahigher pregroduction expenses related to new product devedoprior the new products
launched in 2014. We expect engineering, designpaaduct development expenses in 2015 to be lokaar in 2014 due to staff reductions
lower product development expenses resulting frost reduction actions we initiated in the fourttaqar 2014.

Selling and Marketing.  Selling and marketing information is summarizetblv (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales -  Total Sales -
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year endec $ 792 $ 7,34¢ 7.8% 14.9% 12.2%

Selling and marketing expenses primarily includarsas and payroll related expenses for our satelsraarketing staff, sales commissions, tr
expenses, expenses associated with the leaseesf afiices, advertising, trade show expensespnemerce and other promotional marke
expenses. Such expenses increased $574,000, qriddéarily due to the planned investment in nevesand marketing staff to support our
products, a full year of commissions to our newircasind gaming distributor added in late 2013, SHapp, and increased marketing sper
support our newly launched products in 2014.
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General and Administrative. General and administrative information is summetibelow (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year endec $ 7,75¢ $ 6,58¢ 17.7% 14.6% 11.0%

General and administrative expenses primarily ielsalaries and payroll related expenses for cecwgive, accounting, human resource, bus
development and information technology staff, exggsnfor our corporate headquarters, professiondllegal expenses, telecommunica
expenses, and other expenses related to beinglialpubtaded company. General and administrative expgeimeeeased $1,168,000, or 18%,
primarily to changes in the accrued contingent i@ration liability to be paid in connection withet acquisition of Printrex. In 2014, we redi
the contingent consideration liability by $60,06® zero, compared to a reduction of $900,000 in32Excluding the changes we recorded tc
contingent consideration liability, general and &ustrative expenses increased $328,000, or 4%0i4 Zompared to 2013. This increas
primarily due to higher severance costs relatethéocost reduction initiatives we initiated in tfeurth quarter 2014. We expect general
administrative expenses to be relatively consistétiit 2014.

Legal Feesand Settlement Expenses Associated with Lawsuit . Legal fees and settlement expenses informatisammarized below (in thousar
except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year endec $ 550t $ 47¢ 1,056.5% 10.4% 0.8%

As disclosed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Firarstatements, in June 2012, AD filed a civil coanpt against the Company, which we settled in
March 2015. In connection with this lawsuit, weuned legal fees and settlement expenses of $880%&nd $476,000 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively. We expect legal fees related toahesuit will be approximately $2,000,000 for thesfiquarter of 2015. Due to the settlement of the
AD lawsuit in March 2015, we do not expect to ineay additional expenses related to the lawsuibbdyhe first quarter of 2015.

Operating Income (Loss). Operating income information is summarized belowtljousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2014 2013 Change 2014 2013
Year ende( $ 3,772 $ 6,617 (157.0% (7.1% 11.0%

The decrease in our operating income and operatagin was primarily due to higher legal fees aB@b$5,000 of settlement expenses relat:
the lawsuit with AD that we settled in March 2015well as a 12% decline in sales. In addition, @perating margin for 2013 benefited by
basis points from the $900,000 reduction in thetRek accrued contingent consideration liability.

Interest. We recorded net interest expense of $49,000 i Z@®mpared to net interest expense of $23,00@138.2 The increase in net inte
expense is primarily due to lower interest incoramed on a lower average cash balance during 281e used a significant amount of our ca:
repurchase our common stock and pay cash dividduniisg the latter half of 2013 and 2014. Intergiense related to the unused revolving ¢
line fee and amortization of deferred financingtsosn our revolving credit facility with TD Bank mained consistent in 2014 and 2013.
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for moréarmation.

Other, net. We recorded other expense of $33,000 in 2014 aozdpto $63,000 in 2013. The change was primdrily to a $60,000 loss from
disposal of certain tooling equipment during 20b8ewhat offset by higher foreign currency trangac&xchange losses recorded by our
subsidiary in 2014 compared to 2013.

Income Taxes. We recorded an income tax benefit for 2014 0i$3,000 at an effective tax rate of 37.2% compésegh income tax provision
$1,596,000 at an effective tax rate of 24.4% fot200ur effective tax rate for 2013 was unususdhy because it included; (1) a $224,
reduction in tax liabilities for unrecognized tagnefits resulting from the completion of an audibar 2010 federal income tax return and (2)
benefit from both the 2012 and 2013 R&D creditttas credit for 2012 was not renewed until Januar3. We expect our annual effective
rate for 2015 to be between 35% and 36%.

Net Income. We reported a net loss during 2014 of $2,421,00@(0.29), per diluted share, compared to neairime of $4,935,000, or $0.57,
diluted share, for 2013.
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Results of Operations: Year ended December 31, 20t8mpared to year ended December 31, 2012

Net Sales. Net sales, which include printer, terminal anétveare sales as well as sales of replacement patsumables and maintenance
repair services, by market for the years ended mbee 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change

(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Food safety, banking and P( $ 11,29¢ 18.8% $ 9,48¢ 13.9% $ 1,81: 19.1%
Casino and gamin 27,30( 45.4Y% 29,12¢ 42.6% (1,829 (6.3%
Lottery 4,45( 7.4% 11,63« 17.0% (7,184 (61.8%
Printrex 4,33¢ 7.2% 4,67¢ 6.8% (338 (7.2%
TSG 12,76( 21.2% 13,46¢ 19.7% (706 (5.2%

$ 60,14 100.0% $ 68,38¢ 100.0% $ (8,245 (12.1%
International* $ 13,76¢ 229% $ 18,45¢ 27.0% $ (4,690 (25.4%

International sales do not include sales of printeade to domestic distributors or other customéasin
* turn ship those printers to international destovai

Net sales for 2013 decreased $8,245,000, or 1284 #012. Printer and terminal sales volume deet@3% to approximately 153,000 u
primarily due to declines in the lottery and casarma gaming markets of 60% and 11%, respectivee dverage selling price of our prini
increased approximately 7% from 2012 to 2013 diraaily to higher sales of our food safety termialhich have a significantly higher aver
selling price than most of our other printers. AAtontributing to our higher average selling prices a significant reduction in lottery printer
volume due to a large order by GTECH in 2012 whiels not repeated in 2013. Overall, internationlssdecreased $4,690,000, or 25%, prim
driven by lower sales in both the internationalimasnd gaming and lottery markets.

Food safety, banking and PC: A summary of sales of our worldwide food safédgnking and POS products for the years ended Desmesl
2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousand$g December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 10,95¢ 97.0% $ 8,87¢ 93.6% $ 2,08( 23.4%
International 34C 3.0% 60¢ 6.4% (268’ (44.1%
$ 11,29¢ 100.0% $ 9,48¢ 100.0% $ 1,817 19.1%

The increase in domestic food safety, banking @& Broduct revenue from 2012 was primarily drivgrhigher sales from our newly launct
Ithaca® 9700 food safety terminal and IthacB@D0 printer. This was partially offset by lowelesaof our banking printers mainly due to
shipment of a large order for our Ithac@80 thermal receipt printer to a banking custome2(12 that did not repeat in 2013 as well as losede:
of our legacy POS printers as we continue to deerear focus on this commaoditized market.

International banking and POS printer sales for32@dcreased 44% from 2012 due primarily to lowérsstor the McDonald POS system upgre
and grill initiative in its Canadian stores in 20d@npared to 2012, partially offset by higher salesur Ithaca® 9700 food safety terminal.

Casino and gaming A summary of sales of our worldwide casino amdning products for the years ended December 313 20d 2012 is
follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousand$g December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 15,367 56.3% $ 14,28: 49.0% $ 1,08¢ 7.6%
International 11,93: 43.7% 14,84¢ 51.0% (2,913 (19.6%
$ 27,30( 100.0% $ 29,12¢ 100.0% $ (1,829 (6.3%,

The increase in domestic sales is primarily duartancrease in EPICENTRAIM software sales partially offset by a 3% declinesafes of ot
thermal casino printers mainly due to fewer newintaspenings during 2013 compared to 2012.

International casino and gaming product sales dsekdue primarily to a 38% decrease in salesrobffypremise thermal gaming printers ma
from a 35% decrease in sales to our European llishri and a 35% decrease in sales to our customekastralia and Asia. Sales of our off-
premise gaming printers are largely projedented, and we therefore cannot predict the le¥dlture sales. Additionally, sales of our thet
casino printers decreased by 12% primarily from 20%er sales to our European distributor. This idecln sales of our thermal casino prin
resulted primarily from fewer installations of VLgaming machines in Italy as the government approgdut of these games was substant
completed during 2012, and we therefore shippecdeifgmwinters in 2013. The decrease in thermal capiimters was partially offset by higt
international EPICENTRAL™ software sales in 2013.
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Lottery: A summary of sales of our worldwide lottery peirs for the years ended December 31, 2013 andig2Gk2follows:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousand$y December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 4,417 99.3% $ 10,57« 920.9% $ (6,157 (58.2%
International 33 0.7% 1,06( 9.1% (1,027 (96.9%
$ 4,45( 100.0% $ 11,63¢ 100.0% $ (7,184 (61.8%

Our sales to GTECH are directly dependent on thing and number of new and upgraded lottery terhiirstallations GTECH performs, and as a
result, may fluctuate significantly quarter-to-g@arand year-to-year and are not indicative of GHESCoverall business or revenue. However, ¢
for 2012 were unusually high as GTECH made a finathase for an older generation lottery printet the discontinued production for at the end
of 2012. .

Printrex: A summary of sales of our worldwide Printrex pristéor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20&2 follows (in thousanc
except percentages):

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousand$y December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 3,712 85.6% $ 3,91t 83.8% $ (203; (5.2%,
International 622 14.4% 75¢ 16.2% (135 (17.8%
$ 4,33¢ 100.0% $ 4,67 100.0% $ (338 (7.2%,

The decrease in Printrex printers is primarily ttméower sales of black and white printers in tlleaod gas market, partially offset by higher s
of our two new color printers, the Printrex® 92@drintrex® 980, into the worldwide oil and gas kedr

TSG: A summary of sales in our worldwide TSG marketthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 201Xad@ss:

Year ende( Year ende( Change
(In thousand$y December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ %
Domestic $ 11,92t 93.5% $ 12,28 91.2% $ (359; (2.9%,
International 83t 6.5% 1,182 8.8% (347 (29.4%
$ 12,76( 100.0% $ 13,46¢ 100.0% $ (706, (5.2%,

The decrease in domestic revenue from TSG is pilyrdue to a 25% decrease in sales of consumalblegly HP inkjet cartridges, as we conti
to deemphasize this commoditized consumable prodlu@ddition, paper testing service revenue dedlihy 38% as we performed fewer tes
2013 than in 2012. These decreases were paniddlgt by a 45% increase in sales of replacemens pa well as first year sales contributions 1
consumables for our new Printrex color printergedmationally, TSG revenue decreased due priméoiljower sales of replacement parts
accessories as compared to 2012.

Gross Profit . Gross profit information is summarized belowtfiousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year endec $ 25,09: $ 25,98: (3.4% 41.7% 38.0%

Gross profit decreased $890,000, or 3%, while gmasgin improved 370 basis points as we contingettansition of business towards a n
favorable sales mix of new value-added productsririg 2013 our gross margin primarily benefitedhfreales contributions from our Ithac&®0(
food safety terminals in addition to significantiigher EPICENTRAL™ software sales combined with éoJottery printer sales.

Engineering, Design and Product Development . Engineering, design and product development im&tion is summarized below (in thousal
except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year ende( $ 4,068 $ 4,23¢ (4.1% 6.8% 6.2%

Engineering, design and product development exgedsereased $174,000, or 4%, due primarily to lomgside testing and pgroductior
expenses related to new product development frenfotlr new products we launched in 2012.

Selling and Marketing . Selling and marketing information is summarizetbl (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012

Year ende( $ 7,34¢ $ 6,637 10.7% 12.2% 9.7%



Selling and marketing expenses increased $709@001%, primarily due to the addition of new sadaff and increased marketing spen
support our newly launched products.
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General and Administrative. General and administrative information is sumaetdibelow (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year endec $ 6,58¢ $ 7,83: (15.9% 11.0% 11.5%

General and administrative expenses decreased3500®4 or 16%, due primarily to a reduction in #eerued contingent consideration liability
be paid in connection with the acquisition of Pemtof $900,000 (as discussed in more detail ireNsoto the Consolidated Financial Statemen
addition to lower incentive compensatieiated expenses for executive and administratimpl@yees. These decreases were patrtially offs
higher recruitment fees of $160,000 due to thetamidil sales and engineering staff as previoudgudised, as compared to 2012.

Legal Fees Associated with Lawsuit . Legal fee information is summarized below (inubands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year endec $ 47¢  $ 1,53¢ (68.9% 0.8% 2.2%

As disclosed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Firar8tatements, in June 2012, AD filed a civil coanpi against the Company. In connection
this lawsuit, we incurred legal fees and othertesla@xpenses of $476,000 and $1,533,000 in 2012@™h2|, respectively.

Business Consolidation and Restructuring . Business consolidation and restructuring inforamais summarized below (in thousands, ex
percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year endec $ - $ 13¢ (100.0% -% 0.2%

As disclosed in Note 8 to the Consolidated Findrigfatements, in January 2012, we determined tleabevionger needed to maintain the exis
Printrex manufacturing facility in San Jose, Califia, along with certain redundant headcount. 2012, we recorded a restructuring charg
$138,000 for employee termination benefits relatethese employee reductions as well as movingcolfte closing of the San Jose manufact
operations was completed as of December 31, 20ddid not incur any restructuring charges duriag®

Operating Income. Operating income information is summarized be{owthousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales -  Total Sales -
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012
Year endec $ 6,617 $ 5,60z 18.1% 11.0% 8.2%

The increase in our operating income and operatiaggin was primarily due to the 370 basis pointriovement in gross margin in 2013
compared to 2012 as well as to lower legal feearied from the AD lawsuit as previously discussedaddition, our operating margin for 2(
benefited by 150 basis points from the $900,000¢tdn in the Printrex accrued contingent consitendiability.

Interest . We recorded net interest expense of $23,000 I8 Z@mpared to net interest income of $6,000 in220he decrease in net inte
income was primarily due to lower interest incon@ned on a lower average cash balance, as we usighificant amount of our ca
(approximately $7,511,000) to repurchase our comstock and pay cash dividends in 2013. Intereséese related to the unused revolving ¢
line fee and amortization of deferred financingtsosn our revolving credit facility with TD Bank mained consistent in 2013 and 2012.
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for moréarmation.

Other, net. We recorded other expense of $63,000 in 2013 aosdpto $23,000 in 2012. The change was primdrib/to a loss from the dispa
of certain tooling equipment during 2013 of $60,@8Get by lower foreign currency transaction exaylosses recorded by our U.K. subsidia
2013 compared to 2012.

Income Taxes . We recorded an income tax provision for 2013 596,000 at an effective tax rate of 24.4% conmpdoe$1,964,000 at :
effective tax rate of 35.2% for 2012. Our effeetiax rate for 2013 was unusually low becausecluded: 1) a $224,000 reduction in tax liabili
for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from thenptetion of an audit of our 2010 federal income itatirn and 2) the benefit from the 2012 R
credit of approximately $220,000 as this credit wasrenewed until January 2, 2013 as a comporfehedAmerican Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012

Net Income. We reported net income during 2013 of $4,935,@0%0.57, per diluted share, compared to $3,621,00$0.40, per diluted sha
for 2012.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We assess our liquidity in terms of our abilitygeenerate cash to fund our operating, investingfamaghcing activities. Significant factors affea
the management of liquidity are cash flows fromrafieg activities, capital expenditures, treasurgire repurchases, dividend payments, acci
bank lines of credit and our ability to attractdetrerm capital with satisfactory terms.

Internal cash generation together with currentlgilable cash and cash equivalents, available bamgfacilities and an ability to access cn
lines, if needed, are expected to be sufficierfitital operations, capital expenditures, treasuryestepurchases, dividend payments and any inc
in working capital that would be required to accoodalate a higher level of business activity. Wevatyi seek to expand by acquisition as we
through the growth of our current business. Whilsignificant acquisition may require additionabte@nd/or equity financing, although
assurances can be given, we believe that we waulble to obtain additional financing based onhistorical earnings performance.

Cash Flow

During 2014, our cash balance increased $195,000%) from December 31, 2013 as we returned a aotiat portion of our cash flow
shareholders in the form of $2,634,000 of repurebas our common stock and $2,556,000 of cash elidd paid to common shareholders. I
after funding these items and our capital expenetuwve still ended 2014 with $3,131,000 in cagh@ash equivalents and no debt outstanding.

Operating activities: The following significant factors primarily affeed our cash provided by operating activities 6f0$3,000 in 2014 .
compared to $2,493,000 in 2013. During 2014:

« We reported a net loss of $2,421,000.

« We recorded depreciation, amortization and shasedaompensation expense of $1,951,000.

« Accounts receivable decreased $4,139,000 due plyrtarlower sales volume during the fourth quarg®14 compared to the fou
quarter of 2013 in addition to improved collectic

« Inventories decreased $1,703,000 due to the gelligh of inventory on hand during 2014 comparethtoeasing stocking levels of ¢
new food safety and Printrex products during 204/8.expect our inventories to steadily decline in®2Meginning in the second quat
as we sell through this inventory buildt

« Accounts payable decreased $2,384,000 due to plyni@aidower inventory purchases made during thertlo quarter of 2014 comparec
the fourth quarter of 2013, as well as the timigayments

« Accrued liabilities and other liabilities increas$tl, 022,000 due primarily to higher legal expensdsated to the AD Lawsuit and higl
accrued incentive compensation in 2014 compar@913.

« We recorded accrued lawsuit settlement expensé&8,605,000 related to the settlement with AD. Seete 11 —Commitments ar
Contingencies in the Notes to the Consolidatedrkiizh Statements for further information on thelsaetent charges recorde

During 2013:

« We reported net income of $4,935,000.

« We recorded depreciation, amortization and shasedaompensation expense of $2,262,000.

« Accounts receivable decreased $2,685,000 due plymarsignificantly lower sales volume during theurth quarter of 2013 comparec
the fourth quarter of 201

- Inventoriesncreased $3,189,000 as we increased stockingslevelur new food safety and Printrex productsrdp@013 in anticipation
higher expected sales volun

« Accounts payable decreased $1,674,000 due to plyni@aidower inventory purchases made during thertlo quarter of 2013 comparec
the fourth quarter of 2012, as well as the timifhgayments

« Accrued liabilities and other liabilities decreastJ156,000 due primarily to a decrease in ouneg# of accrued contingent considere
associated with the acquisition of Printrex of $800 during 2013 based on our revised estimathefekpected payout. Additiona
income taxes payable decreased by approximatel,860 resulting from the overpayment of our 2028li@bility. Correspondingly, w
recorded prepaid income taxes of $390,(

Investing activities: Our capital expenditures were $660,000 and $0@B,in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Expenditure2014 include
approximately $385,000 for costs incurred for thechase of new product tooling, $39,000 for castsiired in connection with an enhanceme
the Company ERP software and the remaining amount primariy the purchase of manufacturing equipment and coer
equipment. Additionally, our capitalized softwalevelopment costs for EPICENTRAL™ were $0 and $a@ o 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Capital expenditurefor 2015 are expected to be approximately $800,p@dyarily for new product tooling, and tooling emrttements for o
existing products, as well as for new computer gapint purchases.

Financing activities: We used $5,178,000 of cash from financing adisiduring 2014 to purchase $2,634,000 of comntocksfor treasury, 1
pay cash dividends of $2,556,000 to common shadeh®land $8,000 in financing costs associated evithamended TD Bank Credit Facility
discussed below), partially offset by proceeds &@xdbenefits from stock option exercises of $20,0@uring 2013, we used $6,334,000 of ¢
from financing activities during 2014 to purcha€g1$4,000 of common stock for treasury and to p@shdividends of $2,317,000 to comr
shareholders partially offset by proceeds and &mefbits from stock option exercises of $1,177,000.

Working Capital

Our working capital decreased approximately 26%18,361,000 at December 31, 2014 from $24,871,00@eember 31, 2013. Our current r
of current assets to current liabilities decredsech 4.4 at December 31, 2013 to 2.9 at Decemb&42The decrease in both our working caj
and current ratio was primarily due to the settletrezcrual related to the AD Lawsuit in 2014, adl @we lower accounts receivable resulting f
lower sales in 2014 and declining inventory levels.

Resource Sufficiency
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents nd, ltash flows generated from operating activiied borrowings available under our TD B



Credit Facility will provide sufficient resources tneet our working capital needs, fund $3,625,008csrued settlement expenses related t
settlement of the AD Lawsuit, finance our capitgbenditures, treasury stock repurchases, divideryangnts and meet our liquidity requirems
through at least the next twelve months.
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Credit Facility and Borrowings

We maintain a credit facility (the “TD Bank Credhiticility”) with TD Bank N.A. (“TD Bank”)which provides for a $20,000,000 revolving cr
line. On November 26, 2014, we signed an amendmoergnew the TD Bank Credit Facility through Novssn 28, 2017. Borrowings under
revolving credit line bear a floating rate of irgst at the prime rate minus one percent and ategexkby a lien on all of our assets. We also
fee of 0.15% on unused borrowings under the remgleiredit line. The total deferred financing castating to expenses incurred to complete
TD Bank Credit Facility was $8,000. The amendniaenteases the amount of revolving credit loans vay mse to fund future cash divide
payments or treasury share buybacks to $10,006r660$5,000,000. The amendment also modified #fenifion of EBITDA to exclude certa
non-recurring expenses, including without limitationonfecurring litigation and acquisition expenses (inchg the $3,625,000 of accrt
settlement expenses related to the AD Lawsuit;randified the definition of Operating Cash Flow tacleide unfinanced capital expenditures
the quarters ending December 31, 2014, March 315 26d June 30, 2015.

The TD Bank Credit Facility imposes certain quaytdéinancial covenants on us and restricts, amotigrothings, our ability to incur additior
indebtedness and the creation of other liens. We wecompliance with all financial covenants oé thD Bank Credit Facility at December
2014. The following table lists the financial caaats and the performance measurements at Dec&hb2014:

Financial Covenar Requirement/Restrictio Calculation at December 31, 20
Operating cash flow / Total debt serv Minimum of 1.25 time 16.0 times
Funded debt / EBITD/ Maximum of 3.0 time: 0 times

As of December 31, 2014, undrawn commitments utide D Bank Credit facility were $20,000,000.

Shareholder Dividend Payments

In September 2012, we announced that our Boardiretidrs approved the initiation of a quarterly lcavidend program which is subject to
Board’s approval each quarter. On May 6, 2014, our Bo&ifdirectors declared an increase to the quartagh dividend from $0.07 per shar
$0.08 per share. Dividends declared and paid oe@umon stock totaled $2,556,000 or $0.31 pereshad $2,317,000 or $0.27 per share, in
and 2013, respectively.On February 4, 2015, our Board of Directors appdothe first quarter 2015 dividend in the amount$6f08 per sha
payable on or about March 13, 2015 to common sloddels of record at the close of business on Fepr@d, 2015. We expect to f
approximately $2,500,000 in cash dividends to ammon shareholders during 2015.

Stock Repurchase Program

On August 11, 2014, our Board of Directors approxewkw stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepsePRrogram”). Under the Stock
Repurchase Program, we are authorized to repurcipase$7,500,000 of our outstanding shares of comstock from time to time in the open
market through July 31, 2015, depending on maredlitions, share price and other factors. On Ndy&am3, 2014, our Board of Directors
modified the Stock Repurchase Program (the “10B%ah) to include the repurchase of up to $4,000a¢3@Be Company’s outstanding shares
through April 30, 2015 pursuant to a Rule 10b5atliing plan though our Board ended this trading pléerctive March 31, 2015. We use the cost
method to account for treasury stock purchasesrunmtlich the price paid for the stock is chargeth#treasury stock account. Repurchases ¢
common stock are accounted for as of the settledant From August 11, 2014 through December @14 2we purchased 434,998 shares of our
common stock for approximately $2,634,000 at anaye price per share of $6.06. In 2013, undefca ppurchase program and an open market
transaction, we repurchased 604,161 shares of comstook for approximately $5,194,000 at an ave@ge of $8.60. From January 1, 2005
through December 31, 2014, we repurchased a tb&Pa2,036 shares of common stock for approxirgek@b,161,000, at an average price of
$7.81 per share. As of December 31, 2014, appteiyn$4,866,000 and $2,192,000 remains authofaeiiture repurchases under the Stock
Repurchase Program and 10b5-1 Plan, respective/fdllowing table summarizes the repurchase ofcounmon stock for the year ended
December 31, 2014:

Total Numbel  Approximate
of Shares Dollar Value
Purchased as of Shares that

Part of May Yet Be
Publicly Purchased

Total Numbe! Announced under the
of Shares Average Prici Plans or August 2014

Period Purchase! Paid per Shai Programs Program
July 1, 2014-July 31, 201¢ - - - $ 7,500,00
August 1, 201+~ August 31, 201« 66,77 7.4¢ 66,77 $ 7,000,00!
September 1, 201~ September 30, 201 42,19: 7.7z 42,19 $ 6,674,00
October 1, 201~ October 31, 201 - - - $ 6,674,00
November 1, 201~ November 30, 201 215,40( 5.54 215,40 $ 5,481,00
December 1, 2014 — December 31, 2014 110,63! 5.5¢€ 110,63! ¢ 4,866,00

Total 434,99¢ ¢ 6.0€ 434,99¢

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholdersequity decreased $7,127,000 to $25,394,000 at Dmeelil, 2014 from $32,521,000 at December 31, 201& decrease w
primarily due to our purchase of 434,998 sharesaafsury stock for $2,634,000, dividend payment$23656,000 and a net loss of $2,421,
These decreases were partially offset by proceedshee associated incremental tax benefits of aqpiately $20,000 from the issuance of 6,
shares of common stock from stock option exerciskarebased compensation expense related to stock opafo$506,000 and approximat
$56,000 from the issuance of 9,939 shares of defestock units, net of relinquishments.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements



As of December 31, 2014, we had no off balancetsireengements that have had or that we expectdimiteasonably likely to have a future
material effect on our financial condition, changefinancial condition, revenues or expenses,ltesi operations, liquidity, capital expenditures
or capital resources.
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Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 20&rk as follows:

Payments due by peric

(In thousands) Total <1year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years

Operating lease obligatiol $ 152t % 85C $ 67C $ 5 $ =
Purchase obligatior 6,96 $ 6,83 $ 13C - -
Lawsuit settlement obligations 3,600 3,600 - - -
Total $ 12,08t $ 11,28: $ 80C $ 5 $ -

Purchase obligations are for purchases made indimal course of business to meet operational reaugnts, primarily of fully assembled print
and component part inventory. Lawsuit settlemdniigations relate to amounts due to AD pursuanttoonfidential settlement and rele
agreement.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that our business has not been afféatadignificant degree by inflationary trends dgrthe past three years. However, inflation it
a factor in the worldwide economy and may incresecost of purchasing products from our contraghufiacturers in Asia, as well as the co:
certain raw materials, component parts and labed s the production of our products. It also nrayrease our operating expenses, manufact
overhead expenses and the cost to acquire or esfiked assets. Despite continued growing trartafion and commodity costs, we have gene
been able to maintain or improve our profit marginmugh productivity and efficiency improvementsst reduction programs and to a le
extent, price increases, and we expect to be alde the same during 2015. As such, we do no¢belihat inflation will have a significant imp
on our business during 2015.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures hout Market Risk.

I nterest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interatsts relates primarily to the investment of owailable cash and cash equivalents. In accort
with our investment policy, we strive to achieveyad market rates of return in exchange for accgmiprudent amount of incremental risk, wi
includes the risk of interest rate movements. Rigrance is constrained by an overriding objectiv preserve capital. An increase or decree
10% in effective interest rates would not have &emi@ effect on our results of operations or cieivs.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

A substantial portion of our sales are denominatdd.S. dollars and, as a result, we have relatilittle exposure to foreign currency exchange
with respect to sales made. This exposure maygehawmer time as business practices evolve and dualeé a material adverse impact on
financial results in the future. We do not usewlrd exchange contracts to hedge exposures den@ahiira foreign currencies or any ot
derivative financial instruments for trading or epkative purposes. Westimate that the combined translational and tciwssal impact of a 10'
overall movement in exchange rates from Decembge2@14 (principally the U.K. Pound Sterling) wouldt have a material impact on our res
of operations or cash flows.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements of the Company are ann&x#us report as pages F-3 through F-17. Amirtdesuch materials appears on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account#son Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Attached as exhibits to this Form 10-K are cetificns of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) andhiéf Financial Officer (“CFQO”), which are
required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the 8&es Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “EmghaAct”). This “Controls and Procedures”
section includes information concerning the costeold controls evaluation referred to in the dedtfons.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cliebcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (oprincipal executive officer and princi
financial officer, respectively), evaluated theeetfveness of our disclosure controls and procedasof December 31, 2014. Based upor
evaluation, our management, our Chief Executivac®ffand Chief Financial Officer concluded that,cisDecember 31, 2014, our disclos
controls and procedures are effective. The teriscldsure controls and procedures,” as defined uef 13a-15(e) and 15tb(e) under tr
Exchange Act, means controls and other proceddrasompany that are designed to ensure that irgfthom required to be disclosed by a comj
in the reports that it files or submits under thetange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegudted within the time periods specified in
Securities Exchange Commissientules and forms. Disclosure controls and proeedinclude, without limitation, controls and prdoee:
designed to ensure that information required todiselosed by a company in the reports that it filessubmits under the Exchange Ac
accumulated and communicated to the commanyanagement, including its principal executive pridcipal financial officers, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required disclesuManagement recognizes that any controls ancedtoes, no matter how well designed
operated, can provide only reasonable assuraneehiéving their objectives, and management nedssaplies its judgment in evaluating
cost-benefit relationship of possible controls pnacedures.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraathtaining adequate internal control over finahoéorting to provide reasonable assuri
regarding the reliability of our financial repogirand the preparation of financial statements fder@al purposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. Internal contk@rdinancial reporting includes those policies @ndcedures that (i) pertain to the maintenan
records that in reasonable detail accurately ainly fieflect the transactions and dispositionstod aissets of the Company; (ii) provide reasor



assurance that transactions are recorded as necesgermit preparation of financial statementaatordance with generally accepted accou
principles, and that receipts and expenditures®Qompany are being made only in accordance witioazations of management and directo
the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assuraegarding prevention or timely detection of unawitted acquisition, use or disposition of
Company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.
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Management assessed our internal control over diahmeporting as of December 31, 2014. Managentasted its assessment on cril
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framéwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organimnatiof the Treadway Commissior2(f1<
COSO0O").Based on our assessment, management has conchaleslit internal control over financial reportingsveffective as of December
2014.

The effectiveness of the Compasynternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2014, has been audited by PricewatszGmopel
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which appears herein.

Item 9B. Other Information.
Not applicable

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

Set forth below is certain information regarding enecutive officers. The remaining informationr@sponse to this item will be contained in
Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting ofcBtmlders (the “Proxy Statementiyhich will be filed within 120 days after the yezwveret
by this Form 10-K and is incorporated herein byrence.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following list is included as an unnumberedniten Part 11l of this Report in lieu of being inclad in the Proxy Statement for the Anr
Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2015.

The following is a list of the names and ages bérécutive officers of the registrant, indicatiald positions and offices with the registrant hel
each such person and each person’s principal otonpand employment during at least the pastyaars.

Name Age Position

Bart C. Shuldmal 57 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi
Steven A. DeMartint 45 President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer ardr8tary
Donald E. Brook 62  Senior Vice Preside-Engineering

Tracey S. Cherna 55  Executive Vice President, Casino,Gaming Sales anttbty
Andrew J. Hoffmar 57 Senior Vice President, Operatic

Andrew J. Newmarl 56  Executive Vice President, Sales and Marke

BarT C. SHuLbmAN has been Chief Executive Officer, President andraedidr of the Company since its formation in JA886. In February 20C
Mr. Shuldman was elected Chairman of the BoaMt. Shuldman relinquished the President titiée&tfve June 1, 2010, to focus on new proc
and markets, international expansion and poteatiqlisitions.

SteveN A. DEMARTINO was named as TransAstPresident, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer &stretary on June 1, 2010. Previously,
DeMartino served as Executive Vice President, Chieéncial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary fromeJ2004 to May 2010, Senior Vice Presic
Finance and Information Technology from OctoberR2@DMay 2004, Vice President and Corporate Coletrdlom January 1998 to October 2C
and Corporate Controller from August 1996 to Decenil®97. Mr. DeMartino is a certified public acotant.

DoNALD E. Brooks was appointed Senior Vice President of EngineermgApril 2012. Previously, Mr. Brooks served asc¥iPresider
Engineering from September 2004 to April 2012, SeRiroject Engineer from February 1998 to Septer2bén,Project Engineer from June 1¢
to February 1998, Director of Electrical Enginegrirom March 1986 to June 1997 and Manager of Edaat Development from December 1!
to March 1986.

TRACEY S. (HERNAY Was appointed Executive Vice President, CasinoGatiing Sales and Marketing in June 2010, with nesibdity for the sale
and marketing of all casino and gaming product&viBusly, Ms. Chernay served as Senior Vice PeggjdSales and Marketing from June 20(C
May 2010, Senior Vice President, Marketing & SaR®S & Banking with the Company from July 2006 tad 2007, and joined TransAct in b
of 2005 as Senior Vice President, Marketing. Piagoining TransAct, Ms. Chernay was employed vidirox Corporation where she held the
of Manager, Worldwide Marketing since 2003, and Kfgar, Sales Operations from 2000 to 2002. ShedoXerox Corporation in 1983.

ANDREW J. HOFFMAN was appointed Senior Vice President, OperationsT fansAct worldwide in November 2004. He servedVas Presiden
Operations from September 1994 to November 2004.

Andrew Newmark joined TransAct on January 12, 2@%4Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketirth wasponsibility for the sales &
marketing of all TransAct products. Prior to joigi TransAct, Mr. Newmark was an investor and cdastilwith Newmark Capital Managem
from 2009 to 2015. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Newmar&s employed by Newell Rubbermaid as Vice PresjdBosiness Development &
Strategy. Until 2005, Mr. Newmark held the role $fnior Vice President with DYMO after CoStar, anpany he cdeunded in 1989, wi
purchased by DYMO.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information in response to this item will bentained in the Proxy Statement and is incorporbezdin by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
Set forth below is certain information regarding equity compensation plans. The remaining infdiomain response to this item will be contai

in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated hergireference.

Information regarding our equity compensation plan®f December 31, 2014 is as follows:

(€)

(a) Number of securities remaini

Number of securities to be (b) available for future issuance

issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise under equity compensation

outstanding options, warrants price of outstanding options, plans (excluding securities

Plan categor and rights warrants and right reflected in column (g
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders

2005 Equity Incentive Pla 808,30t $ 8.3: -

2014 Equity Incentive Plan 34,00( 9.87 566,00(

Total 842,30t $ 8.3¢ 566,00(

In May 2014, our shareholders approved the adoptfathe 2014 Equity Incentive Plan. The Comparspahaintains the 2005 Equity Incen
Plan which was approved by our shareholders, howevaew awards will be available for future isstemnder this Plan. The number of shar

common stock which may be subject to awards gramelér the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan is 600,000.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence.

The information in response to this item will bentained in the Proxy Statement and is incorporhezdin by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information in response to this item will bentained in the Proxy Statement section and is par@ted herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
The exhibits filed as a part of this report aréelisin the accompanying Index to Exhibits.

25




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiidthas duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly aigbkd.

Date: March 30, 2015

TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATEI

By: /s/ Bart C. Shuldma
Name: Bart C. Shuldman
Title: Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisdted.

Signature

Title Date

/s/ Bart C. Shuldma

Bart C. Shuldman

/sl Steven A. DeMartin

Steven A. DeMartino

/s/ John M. Dillon

John M. Dillon

/s/ Thomas R. Schwa

Thomas R. Schwarz

/s/ Graham Y. Tanak

Graham Y. Tanaka

Chairman of the Board March 30, 2015
and Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

President, Chief Financial Officer, March 2015
Treasurer and Secrete
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Director March 30, 2015
Director March 30, 2015
Director March 30, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TAah3 echnologies Incorporated:

In our opinion, the consolidatedinancial statements listed in the accompanyingxpdresent fairly, in all material respects, thaficial position

of TransAct Technologies Incorporated and its glibsies at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 20i3the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years inpwéod ended December 31, 2014 in conformity \&@itbounting principles generally accepted in
United States of America. Also, in our opinione Bompany maintained, in all material respectgctiffe internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria esteoliminternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Thmpany's management is responsible for thesedial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportiagd for its assessment of the effectiveness efnat control over financial reporting, included in
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control d&iieancial Reporting. Our responsibility is to eegs opinions on these financial statements
and on the Company's internal control over findmeiporting based on our integrated audits. We gotetl our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdgtard (United States). Those standards regoaewe plan and perform the audits to ob
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehseénts are free of material misstatement andh&heffective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@sir audits of the financial statements includeaneixing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andisart estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@rta Our audit of internal control over financiaborting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assegdtme risk that a material weakness exists, artthteand evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk. Our audits also included performindhsatber procedures as we considered necess
the circumstances. We believe that our audits gegireasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyesabepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (tppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettdfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company eiregbmade only in accordance with authorizationsiahagement and directors of the company;
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regardiaggmtion or timely detection of unauthorized acijiois, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniimal statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or thi
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate..

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
March 30, 2015




TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

Assets:

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid income taxe
Deferred tax asse
Other current assets

Total current assets

Fixed assets, ni

Goodwill

Deferred tax asse

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifb2,326 and $1,811, respectiv:
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payab
Accrued contingent consideration (Note
Accrued lawsuit settlement expenses (Note
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current port
Deferred rent, net of current porti
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 4,800,000 autbdrinone issued and outstanc
Preferred stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, 200a@Rorized, none issued and outstan:

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 authd@réecember 31, 2014 and 2013; 11,122,293
11,106,354 shares issued; 7,900,257 and 8,319t@t6ssoutstanding, at December 31, 201

and 2013, respective
Additional paic¢in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o
Treasury stock, 3,222,036 and 2,787,038 sharessat
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financa#i@ents.

December 31

December 31

2014 2013
$ 3,131 $ 2,93¢
9,09¢ 13,23¢

11,80¢ 13,50¢

40¢ 39C

3,06¢ 1,65¢

48¢ 497

27,99 32,22

2,43¢ 2,73z

2,621 2,621

1,06¢ 92¢

1,341 1,85¢

26 58

7,49¢ 8,187

$ 3549 $ 40,40¢
$ 2,365 $ 4,74¢
3,32( 2,21¢

13 26

- 60

3,625 -

31z 30C

9,63¢ 7.,35(

64 10z

172 244

22F 19C

461 537

10,09; 7,887

111 111

28,16 27,67

22,34¢ 27,32¢

(72) (63)

(25,161 (22,527
25,39 32,52

$ 3549 $ 40,40




Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expense

TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Engineering, design and product developn

Selling and marketin
General and administratiy

Legal fees and settlement expenses associatedawisiuit (Note 11

Business consolidation and restructuring (Note 8)

Operating income (loss)

Interest and other income (expen:
Interest expens
Interest incom:
Other, net

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax (benefit) provision

Net (loss) incom

Net income(loss) per common she
Basic
Diluted

Shares used in f-share calculatior
Basic
Diluted

Dividends declared and paid per common sk

F-4

Year Ended December 3

2014 2013 2012
$ 53,10t $ 60,14: $ 68,38¢
31,39; 35,04¢ 42,40«
21,71 25,09: 25,98:
4,302 4,06¢ 4,23¢
7,92( 7,34¢ 6,631
7,756 6,58¢ 7,83¢
5,50¢ 47¢€ 1,53:
- - 13¢
25,48: 18,47 20,38(
(3,772 6,611 5,607
(61) (64) (61)
12 41 67
(33) (63) (23)
(82) (86) (17)
(3,854 6,531 5,58¢
(1,433 1,59¢ 1,96¢
$ 2421 $ 493 $ 3,621
$ 0.29 $ 057 $ 0.4(
$ 029 $ 057 $ 0.4C
8,307 8,58¢ 9,03:
8,307 8,70: 9,121
$ 031 $ 027 $ 0.0€

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financa#i@ents.




TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December &

2014 2013 2012
Net (loss) incom $ (2,421 $ 4,93t $ 3,621
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (9) (8) 16
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (2,430 $ 4927 $ 3,63

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financasti@ents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensiy Total
Shares Amour Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss Equity
Balance, December 31, 20 9,390,26: $ 10¢ $ 2505¢ $ 2161 $ (11,395 $ (71) $ 35,31
Issuance of shares from exercise
stock options 51,12: 1 171 - - - 17z
Issuance of deferred stock ur - - 134 - - - 134
Tax benefit related to employee
stock sale: - - 57 - - - 57
Purchase of treasury sto (721,184 - - - (5,938 - (5,938
Dividends declared and paid on
common stocl - - - (526, - - (526
Shar+based compensation expel - - 52C - - - 52C
Foreign currency translation ad;.,
of tax - - - - - 16 16
Net income - - - 3,621 - - 3,621
Balance, December 31, 20 8,720,201 $ 10 $ 2594 $ 24,70¢ $ (17,333 $ (55) $  33,36¢
Issuance of shares from exercise
stock options 196,35¢ 2 1,04: - - - 1,04t
Issuance of deferred stock ur - - 13¢ - - - 13¢
Issuance of common stock on
deferred
stock units, net of relinquishmel 6,91¢ - (28) - - - (28)
Tax benefit related to employee
stock sale: - - 132 - - - 132
Purchase of treasury sto (604,161 - - - (5,194 - (5,194
Dividends declared and paid on
common stocl - - - (2,317 - - (2,317
Sharebased compensation expel - - 521 - - - 521
Reversal of deferred tax asset in
connection with stock options
forfeited - - (73) - - - (73)
Foreign currency translation ad;.,
of tax - - - - - (8) (8)
Net income - - - 4,93t - - 4,93t
Balance, December 31, 20 8,319,311 $ 111 $ 2767« $ 27,32¢ $ (22,527 $ (63) $ 32,52
Issuance of shares from exercise
stock options 6,00( - 13 - - - 13
Issuance of deferred stock ur - - 10C - - - 10C
Issuance of common stock on
deferred
stock units, net of relinquishmel 9,93¢ - (44) - - - (44)
Tax benefit related to employee
stock sale: - - 7 - - - 7
Purchase of treasury sto (434,998 - - - (2,634 - (2,634
Dividends declared and paid on
common stocl - - - (2,556 - - (2,556
Shar+based compensation expel - - 50¢€ - - - 50¢€
Reversal of deferred tax asset in
connection with stock options
forfeited - - (89) - - - (89)
Foreign currency translation adj.,
of tax - - - - - 9) 9)
Net loss - - - (2,421 - - (2,421
Balance, December 31, 2014 7,900,25 $ 111 $ 28,160 $ 22,34¢ $ (25,161 $ (72) $ 25,39

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financasti@ents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Year Ended December &

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net (loss) incom $ (2,421 $ 4,93t $ 3,621

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rehgprovided by operating activitie
Shar+based compensation expel 50€ 521 52C
Incremental tax benefits from stock options exexdt ) (132 (57)
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,44t 1,741 1,75¢
Deferred income tax (benefit) provisi (1,558 46 (95)
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed ass 28 60 (13)
Foreign currency transaction los: 7 3 34

Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivabl 4,13¢ 2,68t (6,332
Inventories 1,70¢ (3,189 3,68¢
Prepaid income taxe (98) (367, 47¢
Other current and long term ass 46 20 (154)
Accounts payabl (2,384 (1,674 3,40
Accrued lawsuit settlement expen: 3,62¢ - -
Accrued liabilities and other liakigis 1,022 (2,156 1,182
Net cash providgdoperating activities 6,05¢ 2,49% 8,03(

Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure (660; (709, (1,082

Additions to capitalized softwal (42) (35)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 5 15
Net cash used iresting activities (660 (746 (1,102
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 13 1,04t 172
Purchases of common stock for treas (2,634 (5,194 (5,938
Payment of dividends on common st (2,556 (2,317 (526)
Incremental tax benefits from stock options exedt 7 132 57
Payment of deferred financing costs (8) - (7)
Net cash used infliciag activities (5,178 (6,334 (6,242
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casia&nts (20) (14) (12)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi 19t (4,601 674
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 2,93¢ 7,53 6,86
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 3,131 $ 293¢ $ 7,53
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic $ 49 % 51 $ 51
Income taxes pai 178 2,58¢ 912

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financa#i@ents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of business

TransAct Technologies Incorporated (“TransAct” lee tCompany”)which has its headquarters in Hamden, CT and iilsguy operating facility i
Ithaca, NY, operates in one operating segment: ebaiecific solutions, including printers, termmaoftware and other products for transaction-
based and other industries. These industries deckasino, gaming, lottery, banking, pointsale, food safety, oil and gas and medical
mobile. Our printers are designed based on magietific requirements and are sold under the ItBa&ESPONDER®, Epic, EPICENTRAL
and Printrex® product brands. We distribute owdpicts through OEMs, value-added resellers, selaliggributors, and directly to endsers. Ot
product distribution spans across the Americasppirthe Middle East, Africa, Asia, Australia, tBaribbean Islands and the South Pacific.
also generate revenue from the aftearket side of the business, providing printer iservsupplies and spare parts in addition to reedmm ou
software solution, the EPICENTRAL® Print System PIEENTRAL®"), that enables casino operators to create promoticoapons ar
marketing messages and print them in real-timbeaslot machine.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statesnértlude the accounts of TransAct and its whollyaec
subsidiaries, which require consolidation, after ¢fimination of intercompany accounts, transastiand unrealized profit.

Use of estimates: The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statesneete prepared using estimates and assumptionaffeat the reporte
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expersse disclosure of contingent assets and lisgsilias of the date of the Consolidated Fina
Statements and the reported amounts of sales gemsas during the reporting period. Actual restdtdd differ from those estimates.

Segment reporting : We apply the provisions of the Financial AccountBtandards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards @cdliion (“ASC”)
280, “Segment Reporting.” We view our operationd ananage our business as one segrttemtdesign, development, assembly and marketi
transaction printers and terminals and providinigitpr-related software, services, supplies andesparts . Factors used to identify Transéct’
single operating segment include the organizatistraicture of the Company and the financial infaioraavailable for evaluation by the ct
operating decision-maker in making decisions abowt to allocate resources and assess performance.

Cash and cash equivalents: We consider all highly liquid investments withmaturity date of three months or less at date ofhmase to be ca
equivalents.

Allowance for doubtful accounts: We establish an allowance for doubtful account&nsure trade receivables are valued appropriafet
maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts bagsed wariety of factors, including the length of éimeceivables are past due, significant tme-
events and historical experience. We record aifspaiowance for individual accounts when we be@aware of a customerinability to meet it
financial obligations, such as in the case of baptay filings or deterioration in the custon®roperating results or financial position
circumstances related to customers change, we worilter adjust estimates of the recoverabilityexfeivables. Allowances for doubtful accol
on accounts receivable balances were $100,000@sagfmber 31, 2014 and $63,000 as of Decembel038B, 2

The following table summarizes the activity recatde the valuation account for accounts receivable:

Year ended December &

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of peric $ 63 $ 66 $ 70
Additions charged to costs and exper 37 - -
Deductions - (3) (4)
Balance, end of period $ 10C $ 63 $ 66

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost @ipally standard cost, which approximates actuat om a first-in, firstout basis) ¢
market. We review market value based on histotisalge and estimates of future demand. Basedese tleviews, inventory writdewns ar
recorded, as necessary, to reflect estimated dzsmiee, excess quantities and market value.

Fixed assets: Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciatimtaded using the straiglite method over the estimated useful lives. Tétareate
useful life of tooling is five years; machinery aaquipment is ten years; furniture and office emept is five to ten years; and computer soft
and equipment is three to seven years. Leasehgidovements are amortized over the shorter of eéhm ©f the lease or the useful life of
asset. Costs related to repairs and maintenaecexgensed as incurred. The costs of sold oedetissets are removed from the related ass
accumulated depreciation accounts and any gaionssr is recognized. Depreciation expense was $925%1,216,000 and $1,183,000 in 2(
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Leases: Rent expense under non-cancelable operatingdetitie scheduled rent increases or free rent pergwd accounted for on a straidihe
basis over the lease term, beginning on the datemtfol of physical use of the asset or of inifaksession. The amount of the excess of straigh
line rent expense over scheduled payments is redaad a deferred liability. Construction allowanead other such lease incentives are rec

as deferred credits, and are amortized on a strlighbasis as a reduction of rent expense begininirige period they are deemed to be ea
which generally coincides with the occupancy date.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

Goodwill and Intangible assets : We acquire businesses in purchase transactiongethat in the recognition of goodwill and intablgi assets. Tt
determination of the value of intangible assetsiireg management to make estimates and assumptioascordance with Accounting Standz
Coadification (“ASC") 350-20 “Goodwill” acquired goodwill is not amortized but is subjecimipairment testing at least annually and wheewan
occurs or circumstances change, that indicate mase likely than not an impairment exists. Factwossidered that may trigger an impairn
review of either acquired goodwill or intangiblesats are: significant underperformance relativexjeected historical or projected future opere
results; significant changes in the manner of dsscquired assets or the strategy for the overainess; significant negative industry or econc
trends; and significant decline in market capitian relative to net book value. Definite livedangible assets are amortized and are testt
impairment when appropriate. We have determinet rtbagoodwill impairment has occurred based onasgessment as of December 31, !
when the impairment review is performed.

Revenue recognition : Our typical contracts include the sale of printevkich are sometimes accompanied by separatédged extended warrar
contracts. We also sell replacement parts, conblemaand other repair services (sometimes purgsaantilti-year product maintenance contrau
which are not included in the original printer satel are ordered by the customer as needed. \Wgnige revenue pursuant to the guidance w
ASC 605, “Revenue RecognitionASC 605). Specifically, revenue is recognized wieerdence of an arrangement exists, delivery (bams
shipping terms, which are generally FOB shippingnf)chas occurred, the selling price is fixed amdedminable, and collectability is reason:
assured. We recognize revenue from the sale woiffigpsi and terminals to our distributors and resete a selin basis and on substantially the s:
terms as we recognize revenue from all our othstorners. We provide for an estimate of product returns arickpprotection based on histori
experience at the time of revenue recognition.

We have developed a software solution, EPICENTRAL#Yt enables casino operators to create promdtoogons and marketing messages and
to print them in real-time at the slot machine.v&wie arrangements for EPICENTRAM include multiple deliverables and as a result such
arrangements are accounted for in accordance withASC 605-25, “Multiple-Element Arrangements” ahB8C 985-605,

“Software.” EPICENTRAL™ is primarily comprised of both a software componeuttich is licensed to the customer, and a hardware
component. EPICENTRAL™ contains both software hadiware that are integrated to deliver the systduil functionality. These arrangeme
are accounted for in accordance with ASC 605-25)ltidle-Element Arrangements”. EPICENTRAL™ cancaisclude an additional software
offering, Mobile Host, that allows the customeiatress certain applications on mobile devices. ilétost is accounted for in accordance with
ASC 985-605, “Software” as Mobile Host software sloet function together with the hardware devicddtiver its essential functionality.

Revenue, inclusive of software license fees, iegaly recognized upon installation and formal gtaece by the customer with the exception of
any amount allocated to free maintenance whiclefierded and recognized over the initial maintengreréod, generally one year.

For EPICENTRAL™ and other multiple deliverable arrangements, wesicten whether the deliverables in an arrangemenivithin the scope of
existing higher-level GAAP and apply such literatto the extent that it provides guidance regardihgther to separate multiple-deliverable
arrangements and how to allocate value among #eserate units of accounting.When we enter into a multiple deliverable arrangetnee also
determine whether revenue arrangements consisbrd than one unit of accounting. At that time,allecate arrangement consideration to the
separate units of accounting based on a relatiliegerice hierarchy, except where amounts alléeab the delivered units is limited to that which
is contingent upon the delivery of additional defiables or meeting other specified performanceitond. The relative selling price for each
element is based upon the following selling priegdrchy: vendor specific objective evidence (“VSDiEavailable, third party evidence (“TPE”)
if VSOE is not available, or best estimate of sgllprice (“‘BESP”) to the extent that VSOE or TPE aot available.

Revenue related to extended warranty and produtitemance contracts is recognized pursuant to AG&20-25, Separately Priced Extenc
Warranty and Product Maintenance ContracButsuant to this provision, revenue related to rseply priced product maintenance contrac
deferred and recognized over the term of the maamee period. We record deferred revenue for advaayments received from customers
maintenance contracts.

Our customers have the right to return products dioanot function properly within a limited timetaf delivery. We monitor and track prod
returns and record a provision for the estimatedréureturns based on historical experience. Rsthave historically been within expectations
the provisions established.

We offer some of our customers price protectiomrasncentive to carry inventory of our product.e$h price protection plans provide that il
lower prices, we will credit them for the price dese on inventory they hold. Our customers t¥igicarry limited amounts of inventory, and
infrequently lower prices on current products. &A®sult, the amounts paid under these plans haheeen material.

We charge our customers for shipping and handimgices. The amounts billed to customers are dexbas revenue when the product ships.
costs incurred related to these services are iedlir cost of sales.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

Concentration of credit risk : Financial instruments that potentially expose usaacentrations of credit risk are limited to caslal cash equivaler
held by our banks in excess of insured limits azwbants receivable.

Accounts receivable from customers representing @0#sore of total accounts receivable were as Vigto
December 31

2014 2013
GTECH 15% 21%
Eurocoin 11% 22%
Suzc-Happ 23% 6%
CMC Daymark 11% 19%

Sales to customers representing 10% or more dfrietaales were as follows:

Year ended December &
2014 2013 2012

GTECH 16% 12% 18%
Eurocoin 11% 12% 15%

Warranty :  We generally warrant our products for up to 3éthe and record the estimated cost of such proslagianties at the time the sal
recorded. Estimated warranty costs are based apmal past experience of product repairs anddtated estimated cost of labor and materi
make the necessary repairs.

The following table summarizes the activity recatde the accrued product warranty liability:

Year ended December :

(In thousand$g 2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of peric $ 366 $ 274 $ 421
Warranties issue 18z 492 104
Warranty settlements (262 (400} (251)
Balance, end of period $ 287 % 36€ $ 274

Approximately $207,000 and $282,000 of the accrpextiuct warranty liability were classified as curén Accrued liabilities at December
2014 and 2013, respectively. The remaining $80,8080 $84,000 of the accrued product warranty lighis classified as longerm in Othe
liabilities.

Engineering, design and product development : Research and development expenses include experseared in connection with speciali:
engineering and design to introduce new productstarcustomize existing products, and are expeaseal component of operating expense
incurred. We recorded approximately $4,302,000068,000 and $4,239,000 of research and developmgrgnses in 2014, 2013 and 2(
respectively.

Costs incurred in researching and developing a atensoftware product are charged to expense tagtinological feasibility has been establis
at which point all material software costs are taizied within Intangible assets in our ConsolidaBalance Sheet until the product is availabl
general release to customers. While judgment dgslired in determining when technological feasipilidf a product is established, we h
determined that it is reached after all higgk development issues have been documentedaomef detailed plan design. The amortization eft
costs will be included in cost of sales over theénested life of the product. During 2010 we bedha development of EPICENTRAIM anc
unamortized development costs for such software wpproximately $169,000 and $370,000 as of DeceBhe2014 and 2013, respectively.
total amount charged to cost of sales for capgdlizoftware development costs was approximately $20, $199,000 and $189,000 in 2014, :
and 2012, respectively. The weightaderage amortization period of unamortized capitalisoftware developments costs is approximateg
year.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adigg expenses, which are included in selling amarketing expense on |
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operatfon2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $1,191,000, $10@&Band $949,000, respectively. Tt
expenses include items such as consulting andgsiofeal services, tradeshows, and print advertising

Restructuring :  We continually evaluate our cost structure touemghat it is appropriately positioned to respémahanging market conditiol
We record pre-tax restructuring charges in accarelamith ASC 420-10-25-4, “Exit or Disposal Cost {@htions.” See Note 8 for furth
discussion.

Income taxes : The income tax amounts reflected in the accomipgn@€onsolidated Financial Statements are accouistednder the liabilit
method in accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxd3eferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfpedhe estimated future tax conseque
attributable to differences between the financtatesnent carrying amounts of existing assets aatuiliies and their respective tax bases
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Defittax assets and liabilities are measured usiagted tax rates in effect for the year in w
those temporary differences are expected to beveeed or settled. We assess the likelihood thietleferred tax assets will be realized from fu
taxable income, and to the extent that we belibag riealization is not likely, we establish a vaiom allowance. In accordance with ASC 740
identified, evaluated and measured the amount éfite to be recognized for our tax return posaiosee Note 13 for information regarding
accounting for income taxes.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

Foreign currency trandlation :  The financial position and results of operatiohsur foreign subsidiary in the United Kingdom aneasured usit
local currency as the functional currency. Assetd liabilities of such subsidiary have been tratiesl into U.S. dollars at the yeamd exchanc
rate, related sales and expenses have been temhsiathe average exchange rate for the year, laan@telders’equity has been translatec
historical exchange rates. The resulting trarmbatiains or losses, net of tax, are recorded imeblodders’equity as a cumulative translat
adjustment, which is a component of

accumulated other comprehensive income. Foreigremcy transaction gains and losses, includingehetated to intercompany balances,
recognized in Other, net on the Consolidated Statgsof Operations.

Share-based payments : At December 31, 2014, we had share-based emplayapensation plans, which are described more falliNote 12 -
Stock incentive plans. We account for those plander the recognition and measurement principleA®€ 718, “Compensation Stock
Compensation.” Shafeased compensation expense is measured at thedgtanbased on the estimated fair value of thedjvemd is recogniz:
as expense over the employee’s requisite servitgedpeWe have no awards with market or performasaalitions.

We use the Black-Scholes optipricing model to calculate the fair value of sheesed awards. The key assumptions for this valuatietho
include the expected term of the option, stockepviclatility, riskfree interest rate, dividend yield, market priceoof underlying stock and exerc
price. Many of these assumptions are judgmentdl laghly sensitive in the determination of compeiosaexpense. In addition, we estin
forfeitures when recognizing compensation expeasd,we adjust our estimate of forfeitures overrdwisite service period based on the exte
which actual forfeitures differ, or are expectedliffer, from such estimates. Changes in estimédeféitures are recognized through a cumuli
true-up adjustment in the period of change andiatpacts the amount of compensation expense tedmgnized in future periods.

Net income and loss per share: We report net income or loss per share in acomelavith ASC 260, “Earnings per Share (EP®)rder thi
guidance, basic EPS, which excludes dilution, immated by dividing income or loss available to camnnshareholders by the weighted ave
number of common shares outstanding for the perigitited EPS reflects the potential dilution tleauld occur if securities or other contract
issue common stock were exercised or converteddatomon stock. Diluted EPS includes in-theney stock options using the treasury s
method. During a loss period, the assumed exedfigethe-money stock options has an atititive effect, and therefore, these instrumeme
excluded from the computation of dilutive EPS. Sle¢e 14 - Earnings per share.

3. Contingent Consideration

In connection with a business acquisition on Audi®t2011, whereby we purchased substantiallyfatie@ assets of Printrex, Inc (“Printrexiye
entered into a contingent consideration arrangeméhtPrintrex as part of the acquisition for 30%lwe gross profit for a thregear period relate
to new products under development, less certaier @tjustments, beginning on the earlier of 1) dand, 2012 or 2) the date of first commer
introduction of the new products under developmekd.of December 31, 2014, the undiscounted fdinevaelated to the contingent liability v
estimated to be zero and we do not expect to malmtingent consideration payment. The fair vatithe contingent consideration arranger
was $0 and $60,000 at December 31, 2014 and 264B8ectively, which were estimated by applying theome approach. That measure is b
on significant inputs that are not observable ia tharket, which fair value measurement guidancersetb as Level 3 inputs. During 2014
2013, the fair value of the contingent considerati@s decreased by $60,000 and $900,000, resdgctwel this credit is included in general
administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statismaf Operations. No payments were made underathengement during 2014 as
underlying conditions of the contingent considenatarrangement were not satisfied.

4. Inventories

The components of inventories are:
December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Raw materialsand purchased component p: $ 6,18: $ 7,26
Work-in-process 4 31
Finished goods 5,61¢ 6,21

$ 11,80¢ $ 13,50¢

5. Fixed assets

The components of fixed assets, net are:
December 31

(In thousand$g 2014 2013
Tooling, machinery and equipme $ 10,62( $ 12,06¢
Furniture and office equipme 1,48¢ 1,492
Computer software and equipmt 6,132 5,98¢
Leasehold improvements 1,952 1,92¢
20,19: 21,47(
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (17,858 (18,989
2,33t 2,481
Construction in-process 103 251
$ 2,43t % 2,732
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6. Intangible assets
Identifiable intangible assets are recorded inrigilale assets in the accompanying ConsolidatedBal&heets and are comprised of the following:

December 31

2014 2013

Accumulated Accumulated

(In thousand$y Gross Amour  Amortization  Gross Amour  Amortization
Purchased technolog $ 1,60¢ $ @172 $ 1,60¢ $ (924,
Customer relationshir 1,30(¢ (729, 1,30(¢ (513)
Trademark 48C (162 48C (113
Covenant not to compe 14€ (146 14€ (146
Patents 57 (37) 57 (35)
Other 80 (80) 80 (80)
Total $ 3,661 $ (2,326 $ 3,661 $ (1,811

Amortization expense was $515,000 in 2014, $513i0@D13 and $568,000 in 2012. Amortization exjeefms each of the next five years enc
December 31 is expected to be as follows: $456i)02015; $333,000 in 2016; $244,000 in 2017; $10Q,& 2018; $99,000 in 2019 and $107,
thereafter.

7. Accrued liabilities

The components of accrued liabilities are:
December 31

(In thousand$y 2014 2013
Salaries and compensation rela $ 185 $ 1,447
Warranty 207 282
Professional and consultit 95¢ 13¢
Other 30z 347
$ 332 $ 2,21t

8. Restructuring activities

In January 2012, we determined that we no longede@ to maintain the existing Printrex manufactyfacility in San Jose, California, along w
certain redundant headcount. As a result, we ieduexpenses of $138,000 in 2012 for employee tetioin benefits related to these emplc
reductions as well as moving costs and the closinpe San Jose manufacturing operations that wawpleted as of December 31, 2012.
restructuring charge was recorded in accordance w&C 420-10-25-4 “Exit or Disposal Cost Obligastrand is included within Busine
consolidation and restructuring expenses in therpanying Consolidated Statements of Operatiorssh@ayments made under this restruct
plan were completed by October 2012.

9. Retirement savings plan

We maintain a 401(k) plan under which all ftithe employees are eligible to participate at tegitning of each month immediately following tt
date of hire. We match employees’ contributionsa aate of 50% of employees’ contributions up te tinst 6% of the employeesompensatic
contributed to the 401(k) plan. Our matching cbttions were $282,000, $265,000 and $280,000 i#22013 and 2012, respectively.

10. Borrowings

We maintain a credit facility (the “TD Bank Credhgcility”) with TD Bank N.A. (“TD Bank) which provides for a $20,000,000 revolviorgdi
line. On November 26, 2014, we signed an amendinghte TD Bank Credit Facility through November 2817. Borrowings under the revolv
credit line bear a floating rate of interest at fimene rate minus one percent and are securedlieyn @n all of our assets. We also pay a fe
0.15% on unused borrowings under the revolvingittete. The total deferred financing costs relgtito expenses incurred to complete the
Bank Credit

Facility was $8,000 which will be amortized ovee tiiree year term. The amendment increased thardrobrevolving credit loans we may usi
fund future cash dividend payments or treasuryesibarybacks to $10,000,000 from $5,000,000. Thendment also modified the definition
EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring expensasluding without limitation, nomecurring litigation and acquisition expenses; aratlified the
definition of Operating Cash Flow to exclude unfinad capital expenditures for the quarters endiegehber 31, 2014, March 31, 2015 and
30, 2015.

The TD Bank Credit Facility imposes certain qudytdinancial covenants on us and restricts, amoitgrothings, our ability to incur additior
indebtedness and the creation of other liens. We wecompliance with all financial covenants oé thD Bank Credit Facility at December
2014.

As of December 31, 2014, undrawn commitments utide D Bank Credit facility were $20,000,000.
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11. Commitments and contingencies

On June 8, 2012, Avery Dennison Corporation (“ABIgd a civil complaint against the Company andearfer employee of the Company an
AD, in the Court of Common Pleas (the “Courit) Lake County, Ohio. The complaint alleged thais tformer employee and the Comp
misappropriated unspecified trade secrets and demiial information from AD related to the design of our food safetyrtimals. The complai
requested a preliminary and permanent injuncticaireg the Company from manufacturing and selling lteca®9700 and 9800 food saft
terminals. On July 16, 2012, the Company filedaitswer, affirmative defenses and counterclaimekisg all available damages including le
fees. A hearing on the plaintiff's motion for pm@hary injunction took place in August 2012, andNovember 2012, the Court denied this req
AD filed an appeal of the Coustruling to the Eleventh Appellate District, whibbard oral arguments on the appeal on July 16,.2Q18July 2:
2013, AD requested that the Eleventh Appellateriaisenjoin the Company’ further sale and marketing of the food safetynibeals, pending tt
appeals court's decision. On July 29, 2013, the 2oy opposed this request. On October 15, 201Elthenth District Court of Appeals affirm
the lower court’s decision in the Company’s favad alenied AD’s further request of an injunction gieg the Court of Appead’ decision. O
October 24, 2013, AD filed a motion seeking that @ourt of Appeals reconsider its decision. Onil&&, 2014, the Court of Appeals denied AD’
motion to reconsider its decision. On July 28,£20D filed a motion requesting leave from the Qdorfile an amended complaint and indica
that it has elected to pursue only its claim fomdges, dropping its claim for injunctive relief.n @eptember 4, 2014, the Court granted AD’
motion to file an amended complaint. On Septen@%2014, the Company filed its answer, affirmatidedenses and counterclaims with respe
the amended complaint, seeking all available damageuding legal fees. On January 30, 2015, tengany filed a motion for summe
judgment seeking judgment in favor of the Companyal counts as to the Company. On the same dByfiléd two motions for partial summe
judgment. On February 17, 2015, the Company oppbsth of ALC's motions, and AD opposed the Compangiotion. On February 23, 2015,
Company filed a reply brief in support of its matifor summary judgment. A trial was scheduled eégib on April 21, 2015, however, on Ma
25, 2015 the parties executed a confidential setie agreement and release (the “Settlement Agm&rie which the parties mutually agreec
resolve the dispute that was the subject of theul#wiled by AD against the Company to the pattiesitual satisfaction. Under the terms of
Settlement Agreement, the Company agreed to pay23,b600,000 payable on or before April 8, 2015 adsd to qualify certain AD labels for u
on the Companyg food safety terminals at an estimated cost of GB#b The Company recorded the total expense @2$300 in the four
quarter as an operating expense included in tledtiim “Legal fees and settlement expenses assdaiéth lawsuit’on the Consolidated Statem
of Operations and as a current liability includedtie line item “Accrued lawsuit settlement expafigg the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

At December 31, 2014, we were the lessee on opgrd¢iases for equipment and real property. Reperse was approximately $918,(
$918,000 and $1,005,000 in 2014, 2013 and 201@ectizely. Minimum aggregate rental payments negliuinder operating leases that have il
or remaining noreancelable lease terms in excess of one year@sagmber 31, 2014 are as follows: $850,000 in 26%84,000 in 2016; $86,0
in 2017; $4,000 in 2018 and $1,000 in 2019.

12. Stock incentive plans

Stock incentive plans. We currently have two primary stock incentivar@: the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and 2014 Eduitgntive Plan, whic
provides for awards to executives, key employegsctbrs and consultants. We previously maintaitveal other stock incentive plans, the 1
Director’s Stock Plan and the 2001 Employee Stock Plan,dfottich expired during 2014. The plans generpilyvide for awards in the form
(i) incentive stock options, (ii) nogualified stock options, (iii) restricted stocky)(restricted stock units, (v) stock appreciati@hts or (vi) limitec
stock appreciation rights. Options granted unbese plans have exercise prices equal to 100%edathmarket value of the common stock ai
date of grant. Options granted have a ten-year tard generally vest over a three- to fixgar period, unless automatically accelerated éotaar
defined events. As of May 2014, no new awards lvélimade under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. edodr 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, we r
authorize up to 600,000 shares of TransAct comsstogk. At December 31, 2014, 566,000 shares ofnommstock remained available
issuance under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan.

Under the assumptions indicated below, the weightetage fair value of stock option grants for 20213 and 2012 was $11.11, $7.94
$6.91, respectively. The table below indicateskifye assumptions used in the option valuation tatfians for options granted in 2014, 2013
2012 and a discussion of our methodology for depirpeach of the assumptions used in the valuatiodel:

Year ended December :

2014 2013 2012
Expected option terr 6.6 year 6.8 year 6.7 year
Expected volatility 53.8% 56.5% 57.8%
Risk-free interest rat 1.6% 0.8% 0.8%
Dividend yield 2.6% 3.1% -%

Expected Option Term - This is the weighted average period of time oveictvtthe options granted are expected to remaintandsg giving
consideration to our historical exercise patter@ptions granted have a maximum term of ten yeadsam increase in the expected term
increase compensation expense.

Expected Volatility — The stock volatility for each grant is measurechgshe weighted average of historical daily pribareges of our comm:
stock over the most recent period approximatelyabtuthe expected option term of the grant. Acréase in the expected volatility factor
increase compensation expense.

Risk-Free Interest Rate - This is the U.S. Treasury rate in effect at theetiofi grant having a term approximately equal togkgected term of tl
option. An increase in the risk-free interest raiéincrease compensation expense.

Dividend Yield —We began paying a quarterly dividend to commonedi@ders in December 2012,. The dividend yieldalsudated by dividing tr
annual dividend declared per common share by thghtesl average market value of our common stockhendate of grant. An increase in
dividend yield will decrease compensation expense.
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12. Stock incentive plans (continued)

For 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded $506,000,,86Q1and $520,000 of shabased compensation expense, respectively, inclpdetrily in
general and administrative expense in our CongeliiStatements of Operations. We also recordexirindax benefits of approximately $377,(
$127,000, and $183,000 in 2014, 2013, and 2012atisply, related to such shabased compensation. At December 31, 2014, thesfitsear
recorded as a deferred tax asset in the Consdlid@ance Sheets.

Option activity in the 1996 DirectorsStock Plan, 2001 Employee Stock Plan, 2005 Equitertive Plan and 2014 Equity Incentive Pla
summarized below:

Weighted
Number of Average Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Shares Exercise Pric Contractual Tern Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 718,47" % 8.4¢
Granted 169,50( 11.17
Exercisec (6,000 2.1¢
Forfeited (62,500 8.51
Expired (23,500 31.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 795,97' $ 8.41 5.7 year $ 87,00(
Options exercisable at December 31, 2014 490,72! $ 7.72 4.1year $ 87,00(
Options vested or expected to vest 784,10t $ 8.3¢ 6.0 year $ 87,00(

Shares that are issued upon exercise of emplogek sptions are newly issued shares and not isBoed treasury stock. As of December
2014, unrecognized compensation cost related &k stptions is approximately $955,000, which is etpé to be recognized over a weigt
average period of 2.5 years.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdisgas $20,000, $910,000 and $222,000 and the fatalvalue of stock options vested \
$943,000, $815,000, and $641,000 during 2014, 20182012, respectively. Cash received from optiwercises was $13,000, $1,045,000
$172,000 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. réderded a realized tax benefit in 2014, 2013 20@2 from equitybased awards of $7,0l
$132,000 and $57,000, respectively, related tooaptexercised which has been included as a compoheash flows from financing activities
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Restricted stock : We paid a portion of the 2013, 2012 and 2011 ineergonus for the chief executive officer and cliieéncial officer in the forr
of 8,663, 17,613 and 20,055 deferred stock unéspectively, with a corresponding credit recordeditditional Paid in Capital (net of sh.
relinquishments) in the amounts of $56,000, $110 A¢d $134,000 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectiv@lich deferred stock units were grante
March 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and wahg ¥ested at the time of grant. These units tlconverted three years from the grant d¢
shares of the Company’s common stock on a onefferbasis. The weighted average exercise prideeadéferred stock units was $8.07.

13. Income taxes

The components of the income tax provision ar@bews:

Year Ended December 3

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ 17¢ % 147¢ $ 1,97:
State 15 38 46
Foreign 12 33 40
20z 1,55( 2,05¢
Deferred:
Federa (1,653 80 (116)
State 17 (34) 21
Foreign - - -
(1,636 46 (95)
Income tax (benefit) provision $ (1,433 $ 159 $ 1,96¢
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13. Income taxes (continued)

Our effective tax rates were 37.2%, 24.4%, and®@5f@ 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Our éffectax rate for 2013 was unusually |
because it included: 1) a $224,0@&@luction in tax liabilities for unrecognized tagnefits resulting from the completion of an auditoar 201(
federal income tax return and 2) the benefit from 2012 federal research and development cred®@'Bredit”) of approximately $220,000 as t
credit was not renewed until January 2, 2013 asgonent of the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 201

At December 31, 2014, we have no federal or stat@perating loss carryforwards. We have approtéipa®104,000 in R&D credit carryforwar
that expire in 2034 and approximately $3,000 intestax credit carryforwards that begin to expir019. Foreign (loss) income before taxes
$(56,000), $(29,000), and $92,000 in 2014, 2018,201.2, respectively.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary diffeesrnbetween the tax basis of assets and liabititidstheir reported amounts in the Consolic
Financial Statements. Our deferred tax assetdiaitities were comprised of the following:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Foreign net operating loss $ 28z $ 24z
Capitalized research and developrr - 68
Accrued lawsuit settlement expen: 1,26z -
Inventory reserve 1,062 1,05(
Deferred revenu 56 59
Warranty reserv 10C 127
Stock compensation exper 1,04¢ 95€
Other accrued compensati 40€ -
Foreign tax and other cred 10€ 45
Other liabilities and reserves 31z 491
Gross deferred tax ass 4,63¢ 3,03¢
Valuation allowance (282 (242
Net deferred tax assets 4,35¢ 2,79¢

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciatior 142 17t

Other 76 46

Net deferred tax liabilities 21€ 221

Total net deferred tax assets 413¢ $ 2,57¢

A valuation allowance of $282,000 has been estaddigor foreign net operating loss carryforward# #ire not expected to be usethe following
table summarizes the activity recorded in the \idnaallowance on the deferred tax assets:

Year ended December &

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of peric $ 24z % 21 % 17¢€
Additions charged to income tax provisi 40 56 40
Reductions credited to income tax provision - (30) -
Balance, end of period $ 28z % 24z $ 21¢€

Differences between the U.S. statutory federalrimedax rate and our effective income tax rate aetyaed below:

Year Ended December 3

2014 2013 2012
Federal statutory tax ra 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
R&D credit 6.C - -
State income taxes, net of federal income ti (0.5 0.1 0.8
Valuation allowance and tax accru (1.1) 0.¢ 0.¢
Uncertain tax position (1.0) - -
Miscellaneous permanent itet (0.3 (8.3 (0.8)
Other 0.1 (2.3) 0.3
Effective tax rate 37.2% 24.4% 35.2%
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13. Income taxes (continued)

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had approxim&&®4,000 and $106,000 of total gross unrecogrtiaedenefits that, if recognized, wo
favorably affect the effective income tax rate iy duture periods. We are not aware of any evrascould occur within the next twelve mor
that could cause a significant change in the sr@bunt of unrecognized tax benefits. A tabulaonediation of the gross amounts of unrecogn
tax benefits at the beginning and end of the ygasifollows:

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Unrecognized tax benefits as of Janua $ 106 $ 251
Tax positions taken during the current pel 18 79
Lapse of statute of limitations - (224
Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 $ 124 $ 10€

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as vwgelhaome tax of certain state and foreign jurisdit. We have substantially concluded all !
federal income tax, state and local, and foreign rtatters through 2010. During 2013, an examimatid our 2010 federal tax return v
completed. However, our federal tax returns lieryears 2011 through 2013 remain open to exarnimatfarious state and foreign tax jurisdic
tax years remain open to examination as well, thoug believe that any additional assessment woelommaterial to the Consolidated Finan
Statements.

We do not anticipate that the total unrecognizedenefits of approximately $124,000 will signifitly change due to the settlement of audits
the expiration of statute of limitations prior t@&mber 31, 2015.

We recognize interest and penalties related to rtaioetax positions in the income tax provisions &f December 31, 2014 and 2013, we |
approximately $20,000 and $10,000, respectivelgcafued interest and penalties related to unoceidaipositions.

14. Earnings per share
For 2014, 2013 and 2012, earnings per share wenpwed as follows (in thousands, except per shamuats):

Year Ended December &

2014 2013 2012

Net (loss) incomi $ (2,421 $ 493 $ 3,621
Shares
Basic: Weighted average common shares outstal 8,301 8,58¢ 9,03z
Add: Dilutive effect of outstanding options asetetined by the treasury stock method - 114 89
Diluted: Weighted average common and common etgrivahares outstanding 8,301 8,70: 9,121
Net (loss) income per common she

Basic $ 0.29, $ 057 $ 0.4C

Diluted (0.29 0.57 0.4C

The computation of diluted earnings per share eeduthe effect of the potential exercise of stoghoms, when the average market price o
common stock is lower than the exercise price efrtdated stock option during the period. Thedstanding stock options are not included ir
computation of diluted earnings per share becawseffect would be anti-dilutive. Antilutive stock options, restricted shares and deéestoc!
units excluded from the computation of earnings ¢liértive share were 311,000, and 585,125, at Deeer81, 2013 and 2012 respective
Regarding 2014, when a net loss is reported basidéuted EPS are calculated using the same method

15. Stock repurchase program

On August 11, 2014, our Board of Directors approxestw stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepgeRrogram”). Under the Stock
Repurchase Program, we are authorized to repurcipase$7,500,000 of our outstanding shares of comstock from time to time in the open
market through July 31, 2015, depending on maréedlitions, share price and other factors. On Ndyam3, 2014, our Board of Directors
modified the Stock Repurchase Program to include¢purchase of up to $4,000,000 of the Companytstanding shares through April 30, 2015
pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan though aarB ended this trading plan effective March 31,%220We use the cost method to account for
treasury stock purchases, under which the priag fpaithe stock is charged to the treasury stockaist. Repurchases of our common stock are
accounted for as of the settlement date. From sugi, 2014 through December 31, 2014, we purchd34®98 shares of our common stock for
approximately $2,634,000 at an average price paestf $6.06. In 2013, under a prior repurchasgnam and an open market transaction, we
purchased 604,161 shares of common stock for appately $5,194,000 at an average price of $8.6@mRJanuary 1, 2005 through December
2014, we repurchased a total of 3,222,036 sharesmfon stock for approximately $25,161,000, adeerage price of $7.81 per share.

F-16




16. Geographic area information

Information regarding our operations by geograpinéa is contained in the following table. These@ants in the geographic area table are bas
the location of the customer and vendor.

Year Ended December 3

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Net sales
United State: $ 38567 $ 46,377 $ 49,93:
International 14,54 13,76¢ 18,45¢
Total $ 53,106 $ 60,14: $ 68,38¢
Fixed assets, ne
United State: $ 1,49C $ 1,58: $ 1,941
International 94¢ 1,14¢ 1,361
Total $ 243¢ $ 273 $ 3,302

Sales to international customers were approxim&ep, 23%, and 27% in 2014, 2013, and 2012 respedgti Sales to Europe represented £
52%, and 52%, sales to the Pacific Rim (which idekiAustralia and Asia) represented 33%, 26%, 836, And sales to Canada representec
10%, and 16% of total international sales in 2013, and 2012 respectively. International Idimge assets consist of net fixed assets local
our foreign subsidiary in the United Kingdom asIvesl our contract manufacturers in China, Thaildndlaysia and Mexico.

17. Quarterly results of operations (unaudited)

Our quarterly results of operations for 2014 anti®8re as follows:

Quarter Ende

(In thousands, except per share amounts) March 31 June 3( September 3  December 3:
2014:
Net sales $ 13,61¢ $ 13,80 $ 13,38¢ $ 12,29¢
Gross profit 5,72¢ 5,78¢ 5,28¢ 4,911
Net income (loss 394 17& 50 (3,040
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic 0.0t 0.0z 0.01 (0.37,
Diluted 0.0t 0.0z 0.01 (0.37,
2013:
Net sales $ 15,057 $ 15,78¢ $ 16,76¢ $ 12,52¢
Gross profit 6,43: 6,452 7,20¢ 5,001
Net income 1,16( 1,21t 1,451 1,10¢
Net income per shar
Basic 0.1z 0.14 0.17 0.1z
Diluted 0.1z 0.14 0.17 0.1z
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTRWRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referénddie Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N88-182624 and 33270515) of TransA

Technologies Incorporated of our report dated MaBfhy 2015 relating to the financial statements &nel effectiveness of internal control ¢
financial reporting, which appears in this Form-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LI

Hartford, Connecticut
March 30, 2015




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bart C. Shuldman, certify tha
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of TransAct Technologies Incorporate

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortmynuntrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fact necessary
make the statements made, in light of the circumests under which such statements were made, nigtadhiisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$,atiner financial information included in this rapofairly present in all materic
respects the financial condition, results of openas and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in this repc

4. The registrants other certifying officer and | are responsible fstablishing and maintaining disclosure contraisd procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 1&@)) and internal control over financial reporgr(as defined in Exchange Act Ri
13e-15(f) and 15¢15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregsaased such disclosure controls and procedurdsetaesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatig to the registrant, including its consoliddtsubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyridg the period in which this report is being prepd,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial refiog, or caused such internal control over finaai@porting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asscearegarding the reliability of financial reportinand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in adeoice with generally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preseirtetthis report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period covbyettis report based on st
evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regist's internal control over financial reporting that aarred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the rerasit’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annugbod) that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrar s internal control over financial reporting; ar

5. The registrants other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdé on our most recent evaluation of internal cointver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the #utbmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiegient
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controleovinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reegigt’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiorncial information
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrar's
internal control over financial reporting

Date: March 30, 201!

/s/ Bart C. Shuldma

Bart C. Shuldman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven A. DeMartino, certify the
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of TransAct Technologies Incorporate

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortmynuntrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fact necessary
make the statements made, in light of the circumests under which such statements were made, nigtadhiisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$,atiner financial information included in this rapofairly present in all materic
respects the financial condition, results of openas and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in this repc

4. The registrants other certifying officer and | are responsible fstablishing and maintaining disclosure contraisd procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 1&@)) and internal control over financial reporgr(as defined in Exchange Act Ri
13e-15(f) and 15¢15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregsaased such disclosure controls and procedurdsetaesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatig to the registrant, including its consoliddtsubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyridg the period in which this report is being prepd,;

b. Designed such internal control over financial refiog, or caused such internal control over finaaieporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asscearegarding the reliability of financial reportinand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in adeoice with generally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preseirtetthis report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period covbyettis report based on st
evaluation; anc

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regist's internal control over financial reporting that aarred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the rerasit’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annugbod) that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrar s internal control over financial reporting; ar

5. The registrants other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdé on our most recent evaluation of internal cointver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the #utbmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiegient
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controleovinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reegigt’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiorncial information
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrar's
internal control over financial reporting

Date: March 30, 201!

/sl Steven A. DeMatrtir

Steven A. DeMartino
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of TransAathf®logies Incorporated (tFCompany”) on Form 10K for the period ending December
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @imsion on the date hereof (the “Report&ach of the undersigned officers of the Comy
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedymant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26G2,to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementSeadtion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchancteofA1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cdiwh and results of operations of -
Company

Date: March 30, 201!

/s/ Bart C. Shuldma
Bart C. Shuldman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 201!

/s/ Steven A. DeMartir

Steven A. DeMartino
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary




